
MEETING AGENDA 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

MAY 9,2016,7:00 P.M. 

1. Semi-annual Mountain Brook Chamber of Commerce report to the City Council. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the April 25,201 6 regular meeting of the City Council. 

3. Consideration: Resolution approving the lunchtime restaurant conditional use application for 
Biscuit Boyz at 2708 Culver Road. 

4. Consideration: Resolution accepting the professional services proposal submitted by Williamson 
& Associates, Inc. with respect to the library building exterior consulting services 

5. Consideration: Resolution accepting the professional services proposal submitted by William 
Whittaker, Architect, wit11 respect to design services for the joint fire and police training building. 

6. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for the turn lane extension on Overbrook Road at 
Montevallo Road. 

7. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is May 23,2016, at 7:00 p.m. in. 
the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 352 13. 

8. Comments from residents. 

9. Adjourn. 



Minute Book 87 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

APRIL 25,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, the 25th day of April, 2016. The Council President called 
the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Sheiton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 

Also present were City Attorney Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Stop sign on Hampshire Drive at Oakdale Drive (Ordinance No. 1951 was added to the formal meeting 
agenda.) 

2. Stop sign on Montevallo Terrace at Park Lane (Ordinance No. 1952 was added to the formal meeting 
agenda.) 

I r 3. Library window replacement-Appendix 1. (Proceed with quotes for window replacement and obtain 

pricing for moisture/waterproofing consultant.) 

4. Revision to approved sidewalks at the Grand Bohemian Inn (Appendix 1). 

The developer has installed a section of sidewalk along the inn that does not conform to the approved 
master development plan. In addition, the developer is seeking [advance] approval to install lighting 
along said sidewalk that is inconsistent with the mater development plan. It was the general consensus 
of the Council members present that the acorn lighting approved in the master development plan be 
studied f i e r  to determine if a shield to minimize lighting shining toward the f is t  floor guest rooms 
can be added. The approved acorn lighting is preferred to the suggested pathway lighting. 

Regarding the approval of sidewalk deviation and lighting change, the Council reminded John Knutson 
(representing the developer) that any revisions to the master development plan had to be addressed in a 
public hearing, fwst before the Planning Commission and then before the City Council. Due to the 
process specified in the zoning ordinance, no approvals can be offered at this time. Furthermore, the 
members of the City Council stated that if the sidewalks (or other infrastructure components) are not 
installed in accordance with the master development plan such that an amendment to the master 
development plan is pursued, the City Council will most likely seek adjustments to the development 
incentive package approved in conjunction with the rezoning and approval of the master development 
plan. 

5. Review of the matters to be considered at the formal [7 p.m.] meeting. 

April 25.2016 



Minute Book 87 

2. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the meeting of the City Cowrcit of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A 106) on April 25,2016, and that the meeting was duly called 

and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that no 
formal action or votes were conducted at said meeting. 

City Clerk 

April 25.20 I6 



Minute Book 87 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

APRIL 25,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 25th day of April, 2016. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Wiiliarn S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 

Also present were City Attorney Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business 

1. INTRODUCTION OF LEROY NIX, NEW ALABAMA POWER COMPANY 
CONTACTlREPRESENTATrvE 

Mr. Nix introduced himself to the government body. 

2. LEADERSHIP MOUNTAIN BROOK PRESENTATIONS 

Participants of the 2015-2016 Leadership Mountain Brook class presented their project 
recommendations to the City Council. The projects included: 

1. Public Art (Appendix 5) 
2. City of Mountain Brook T-shirt @randing) (Appendix 6) 
3. Buttons Ex~lores the Brook childrens' book written by the Leadership Mountain Brook class 

(Appendix 7) 
4. ZYP Bike Share 

a ZYP stations cost approximately $50,000 each depending on the number of bikes per 
station 

b. 6-8 stations would be optimal 
c. Operating costs but are not limited include bike maintenance, charging, rebalancing 
d. Grants may be available that can cover up to 80% of the initial cost (ZYP officials can 

assist with information about grant options and applications) 
e. The ZYP program seems to have been well received in Birmingham 
f. The City of Homewood is currently considering a ZYP program 
g. ZYP packages include: $75 annual (unlimited), $6 24-hour membership, $20 7-day 

membership, $200 2-year membership. All rides are 45-minutes. ZYP bikes are to be 
checked in at any ZYP station every 45-minutes to avoid add-on fees. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the April 1 1,2016 regular meeting of the City Council. 

April 25.2016 



Minute Book 87 

2016-054 Declare certain property surplus and authorizing its sale at Exhibit 1 
public Internet auction 

2016-055 Authorize the City's participation in the 2016 "Back-to- Exhibit 2, 
School" Sales Tax Holiday, beginning at 12:Ol a.m. on Appendix 1 
Friday, August 5,2016, and ending at twelve midnight on 
Sunday, August 7,201 6, whereby the City of Mountain 
Brook will exempt certain school supplies, computers, and 
clothing from municipal sales or use tax in conformance with 
the time period, terms and conditions, and definitions as 
provided for the "State of Alabama Sales Tax Holiday" 

2016-056 Approve the conditional (service) use application for an Exhibit 3, 
veterinaridpet grooming business at 253 Country Club Park Appendix 2 
subject to specified conditions 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, proclamation and resolutions were introduced by Council President 
Smith and their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Shelton. The minutes and resolutions 
were then considered by the City Council. Council member Womack seconded the motion to adopt the 
foregoing minutes and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was 
recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Council minutes and resolutions (Nos. 2016-054 
through 2016-056) are adopted by a vote of 4-0 and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

4. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1951) PROVIDING FOR A STOP SIGN ON 
HAMPSHIRE DRIVE AT ITS INTERSECTION WlTH OAKDALE DRIVE AND TO 
PROVIDE FOR PU1YISBMENT FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF (EXHIBIT 4,  APPENDIX 3 ) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. 

There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a motion. Council 
member Carl made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the 
immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent to the 
immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. 
The motion was seconded by Council member Shelton and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion carried by a vote of 4 4 .  

April 25,2016 



Minute Book 87 1133 

After said ordinance had been considered in h l l  by the Council, Council member Womack then 
moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl. Thereupon, 
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 195 1) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 4-0 and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same. 

5. CONSIDERATION: ORDINANCE (NO. 1952) PROVIDING FOR A STOP SIGN ON 
MONTEVALLO TERRACE AT ITS INTERSECTION WITH PARK LANE AND TO 
PROVIDE FOR PUNISHMENT THEREOF (EXHIBIT 5, APPENDIX 4) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. 

There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a motion. Council 
member Sheiton made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would prevent the 
immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent to the 
immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be waived. 
The motion was seconded by Council member Womeck and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared the motion carried by a vote of 4-0. 

After said ordinance had been considered in full by the Council, Council member Womack then 
moved for the adoption of said ordinance. The motion was seconded by Council member Carl. Thereupon, 
Council President Smith called for vote with the following results: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

The Council President Smith declared that the said ordinance (No. 1952) is hereby adopted by a vote 
of 4 4  and, as evidence thereof, she signed the same 

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, May 9,2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Streef 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.ore;) for more information. 

April 25,2016 



Minute Book 87 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no fhrther business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting. 

8. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certifL the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A108) on April 25,2016, and that the meeting was duly called and held in 
all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum was 
present. 

City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1, 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-054 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which are no 
longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1 1-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing body to 
dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City oCMountain Brook, as 
follows: It is hereby declares that the following property owned by the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is not 
needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus property: 

Item 
1 .oo 
1-01 
1.02 
1.03 
1.04 
1.05 
1.06 
1.07 
1.08 
1.09 
1.10 

Model Description 
Color LaserJet CP2025 Color laser printer 
Color LaserJet CP2025 Color laser printer 
Photosmart C4580 All-in-One: Printer, Scanner, Copier 
Optiplex 790 CPU 
Optiplex 390 CPU 
Optiplex 780 CPU 
Optiplex 780 CPU 
Optiplex GX280 CPU 
Scanjet G4050 
P206HL 
MS-6638 
MS-6638 
SP2309Wc 
SP2309Wc 
P23 14Nt 
El 98FPc 
E198FPc 
P2012Ht 
P2012Ht 
P20 12Ht 

Photo Flatbed Scanner 
20 inch widescreen LCD monitor 
All-in-one touch screen computer 
All-in-one touch screen computer 
23-inch LCD monitor 
23-inch LCD monitor 
23-inch flat panel monitor 
19-inch LCD monitor 
19-inch LCD monitor 
20-inch flat panel monitor 
20-inch flat panel monitor 
20-inch flat panel monitor 

V:\Minutcs & Agcnd~~CouncilK016\20160425 Minutcs.d& April 25,2016 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-057 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby approves the lunchtime restaurant conditional use application for Biscuit 
Boyz at 2708 Culver Road. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of May, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of May, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifi the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on May 9,2016, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

L 

City Clerk 

2708 Culver Road Conditional Use Approval 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

Dana 0. Hazen, AICP 
Dircetor of Planning, Building 
& Sustainability 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: 205/8023821 
Fax: 205.879.6913 
huzendQmtnbrook.org 
www.mtnbrook.ore 

DATE: May 5,20 16 

TO: Mayor, City Council, City Manager, City Attorney 

FROM: Dana Hazen, City Planner 

RE: Conditional Use for Biscuit Boyz (1 lam-lpm lunch service) 
2708 Culver Road (previous iRevive and Melanie Pounds Interiors) Mountain Brook Village 

Request for approval of a fast-casual restaurant in Mountain Brook Village. As may be seen in the attached 
letter of operational characteristics, although the restaurant is primarily a breakfast service, it is proposed to 
be open during the lunch peak hours of 1 1:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m., thereby requiring approval of a conditional 
use. 

The number of employees present between 1 1 :00 a.m. and I :00 p.m. will be four (4). There are two (2) on- 
site parking spaces along the alley which will be utilized by employees. Also, there is an agreement with 
Tom Shcffer of Avo-Dram to utilize the on-site parking at Avo-Dram for employee parking of this 
establsihment, so it is not expected that employees of this proposed establishment will have an impact on 
street parking. 

The applicant's letter indicates seating for up to 25 patrons; however, it not anticipated that this will create a 
demand for 25 parking spaces, in that a portion of the patrons will already be parked in the Village as 
employees or patrons of other retail, office and service establishments in the Village. 

As has been noted in past memos to council regarding parking on Montevallo, Petticoat and Culver, there is 
often ample parking along Petticoat and a fairly regular turnover of parking along Montevallo during the 
lunchtime hours. However, parking on the north end of Mountain Brook Village is on the cusp of change in 
the near future. Some of the Western parking lot will be lost in conjunction with the demolition of Western, 
Smith's and Ollie Irene and construction of Jemison Lane and associated improvements on the south end of 
Lane Parke. This is anticipated to take place beginning as early as fall of 2016. So, some on the Another 
Broken Egg patrons that currently utilize the Western parking lot will be forced to find street parking in the 
vicinity of this section of the Village. Ultimately, when Lane Parke is completed there wiil be new street 
parking added to the north side of Culver (see attached excerpt from the Skipper Traffic Study for Lane 
Parke). 

The zoning ordinance requires council approval of a lunchtime conditional use, and states that any proposed 
conditional use wiil be reviewed as to the following: 

Whether the use would disparately impact public parking in the area; 

Whether vehicular or pedestrian circulation would be impacted by the use; 

Whether the use is compatible with surrounding existing uses; 

Whether the hours of  operation or peak traffic times would impact existing uses. 



4 May 2016 

Dear Ladies and Sirs: 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our proposal for operating hours from 11 AM to 1 
PM, described as lunch hours by the City of Mountain Brook. We are working with Spitfire 
Realty, the group that owns the little building at 2710 Culver, and architect Pete Pritchard, 
whose plans and renderings you should also have received, to develop a small biscuit concept 
offering mostly breakfast but also a light carryout lunch and (we hope) office catering business. 

We plan to operate from 7 AM to 2 PM, closing after lunch service, with the lion's share of the 
business to come from 7-10 AM. Biscuits mean breakfast, and while they are eaten a t  other 
times of day, they are tied tightly to breakfast in the minds of the public and the culture of the 
area. So well over half of our sales would come then. Still, since it's never cheap to open and 
operate a restaurant, additional revenue from what are thought of as lunch hours would be 
crucial to the success of the enterprise, not to mention to fully employ workers at enough 
daily hours to maintain an admittedly small staff. 

On that note, just 3-4 employees at a time would run the operation, as the space is quite small 
at around 800-900 square feet, and some of the staff would come from Dram, where they 
would park in our spaces behind the Village Corners building at Montevallo and Cahaba roads 
or in the three spaces behind the Spitfire building. With such brief operating hours, some 
employees would have to get more hours at Dram to make their time worthwhile. Indeed, 
some of the preparation of items to be sold at Biscuit Boy would be done in the Avo+Dram 
kitchen itself. So we don't see employee parking having an impact on village spaces. 

In rudimentary midday parking counts over the past few weeks (and with an eye to the 
additional parking that is changing the realities of Mountain Brook Village), it's evident to us 
that there are always a good number spaces on Petticoat Lane and, despite past controversies 
over such, on Montevallo itself during the lunch hours in question, as no lunch- 
focused restaurant operates there. Avo and Dram are not open then, and Another Broken Egg, 
like the proposed Biscuit Boy, is a breakfast- and thus morning-centered place. Obviously (and 
for decades), Gilchrist is open for lunch nearby, but it's also a small space without a ton of 
seating, and the service is fast as the lunches themselves tend to be (1 know from experience as 



I'm sure you all do better than I). So with our limited seating -- in the 20-25 range, say -- and 
what we expect to be the preponderance of to-go business, we don't see people lingering or 
parking long at all to enjoy our product. A biscuit sandwich, which represents the vast majority 
of our menu, is a rapidly prepared item and one rapidly consumed or easily taken away as well. 
We will have no table service and no bar and thus no reason for guests to tinger long. 

We expect the majority of our draw to be in the morning hours, when guests are grabbing 
breakfast and coffee to go or eating it quickly in the space. A community table proposed in 
front and a counter of sorts along the side would invite a quick sit-down at breakfast or lunch 
rather than a long meal as at Avo or Dram, for instance, or even as a t  Another Broken Egg, with 
a multitude of tables and table service to take food orders. And while we hope to be something 
of a destination, even a "drive-by" one, for breakfast, we don't see anyone coming from across 
Birmingham or nearby communities to grab a quick breakfast-oriented biscuit at lunch. True, 
we will offer a salad and a few more "lunchy" biscuit sandwiches, but grits and gravy aren't the 
stuff of business lunches. I see our lunch business coming mostly from the merchants and staff 
of the village itself, or people from the hotel and offices nearby. Indeed, we hope to sell pick-up 
biscuit platters for such groups on a regular basis during the week. 

I hope this gives you all some basis for our request and I look forward to discussing the matter 
with you further as a group or individually as you see fit. Thank you for your review. 

Respectfully, 

Tom Sheffer 



A rough but fairly detailed menu outline for what we would offer at Biscuit Boy in the Spitfire Realty-owned 
building on Culver: 

BISCUIT BOY 
Egg 8 Cheese 
Bacon 
Sausage 
Conecuh 
Country Ham 
Chicken 
Hot Chicken 
Hot Brown 
Cuban 
PBLT (on English Muffin) 
Burger Boy 
Sloppy Joe 
Pulled Pork (+slaw) 
Benedict Boy (on English muffin or biscuit) 
Early Riser (egglmeatlcheeseltots) 
Po'Boy (wl comeback sauce) 
Border Boy (flour taco) 

GRAW 
Sausage 
Red-Eye 
Smoked Tomato 
Chocolate 
Gravy Flight (choice of three) 

SIDES 
Cheese Grits 
Tater Tots (loaded: wl cheese sauce) 

SALAD 
Kale Salad (cranberrieslred-wine vinaigrettelbiscuit croutons) 

BREAKFAST PLATE 

POOCH 
Good Boy! (dog biscuit) 













RESOLUTION NO. 2016-058 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby accepts the professional services proposal submitted by Williamson & 
Associates, Inc., in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the library building 
exterior consulting services. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of May, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of May, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifjr the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by tfle City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on May 9,20 16, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. + 

City Clerk 

Library Building Exterior Consulting Services 



Williamson B; Associates, Inc. 
Building Exterior Consultants 

6100 Lake Forrcst Drivc. Suilc 375 
Atlanta, Georgia 30318 
Ollicc: (404) 156-7388 

Fax: (404) 156-1457 

April 27,2016 

Mr. Steven Boone 
City of Mountain Brook 
P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 13-0009 
Direct: (205) 802-3825 
Facsimile: (205) 874-061 1 
Email: boones@mtnbrook.org 

RE: Proposal for Building Exterior Consulting Services 
Condition Evaluation of Exterior Wall and Roof Assemblies 
Mountain Brook Library 
Mountain Brook, AL 
(W&A-Proposal) 

Dear Mr. Boone: 
L ' I  * 

Williamson & Associates is pleased to have this opportunity to submit a proposal for our 
building exterior consulting services. The purpose of our services in this instance will be to 
perform a general condition evaluation of the exterior wall and roof assemblies of the referenced 
building, and provide our recommendations for repairs to address the building. This proposal 
presents our proposed scope of services, support required, scheduling information, the applicable 
compensation, and a request for your formal authorization. 

PROJECT 

The Mountain Brook Library is a 2 story building with exterior walls are of masonry, cast stone, 
stucco or ElFS with punched window openings. The roofing is comprised of either low slope 
single ply roof membrane or steep slope roofing comprised of asphalt shingles. The building was 
constructed circa 2000. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

We propose to provide the following scope of services: 

Perform a general condition elevation study of the building exterior envelope and roofing, 
using a variety of techniques, to assess the building envelope. During this condition 
evaluation study, we will need to interview local property management personnel 
knowledgeable in the construction and maintenance history of the building. We will also 



Mountain Brook Library - Mountain Brook. AL A~ri l27 .  20 16 
(W&A - Proposal) Page 2 

wish to interview to obtain information regarding known areas of reported leakage, air 
infiltration, or other known issues with the building exterior envelope. If there is a copy set 
of the original Architectural drawings, we would like to review those drawings while we are 
onsite. If they are available only in paper form, we would be glad to scan the building 
exterior elevations and roof plan, and other drawings as needed. We have this scanning 
capability in-house, and could provide back to the Owner a CD disc containing "pdf' files of 
each of the original drawings we scan, if that information has not already been compiled by 
the Owner. 

Afer initial interview and tour of the building, we will evaluate the exterior envelope 
condition by visual inspection from the grounds around the building and from accessible roof 
areas and with the use of a 24' ladder. No lifts or other access equipment is proposed. For the 
step sloped roofing, we will likely not access the roof but evaluate the roof from areas the 
ground, low sloped roofs or utilizing high-powered digital camera zoom lenses from around 
the base of the building. We may also use the high-powered camera while scanning the 
building exterior looking for areas of distress, such as cracking, failed or poor condition 
joints, shoving, spalling, and other distresses that may be present in the building exterior 
materials. As stated no lifts or other access methods will be provided for the visual 
evaluation. If during the evaluation we determine lifts or other means of access equipment 
becomes apparently needed, we will discuss that with the City of Mountain Brook to seek 
approval and support for the additional cost/efforts as may be recommended. If we have a 
copy set of the original Architectural drawings, that would be useful to allow us to compile 
or map in areas of significant distress that we may observe, onto the drawings. 

We may elect to perform limited water testing if there are areas found during the evaluation 
that are suspect to leakage. The amount of testing will be determined during the evaluation 
based on available time. Testing equipment (type and method) and water hoses will be 
provided by W&A. A water source at the property must be provided by the City of 
Mountain Brook. 

At this time, we do not plan on performing selective demolition evaluation techniques. If 
such level of investigation becomes apparently needed, we will discuss that with the City of 
Mountain Brook to seek approval and support for the additional cost/efforts as may be 
recommended. 

After performing the above evaluation techniques, we will compile our observations and 
prepare a written report presenting our observations and findings, along with our 
recommendations for repairs that we would consider appropriate to the building exterior 
envelope. Our report will include text discussion, photographs illustrating our observations, 
our recommendations in bullet repair outline format. Our report will be presented and 
provided in "pdf' format. 



Mountain Brook Librarv - Mountain Brook. AL Auril27.20 16 
(W&A - Proposal) Page 3 

SUPPORT REQUIRED 

As requested, we will need access to the building exterior, all roofing areas, and to the local 
property management staff. An escort from the property would need to accompany use during 
the evaluation. As described, the first step is to interview local property management and staff 
knowledgeable regarding construction and maintenance history, and the locations of known 
reported problems such as leakage or other issues. 

If there is a copy set of the original Architectural drawings available, we would like to review 
them either onsite, or back in office. If those drawings have already been scanned and are 
available in "pdf' format, we would like a copy CD of those drawings. That would allow us to 
print the elevation and roof plan sheets, and use them in the field to help us record our 
observations by location and area. 

SCHEDULING INFORMATION 

We can begin our building exterior condition evaluation survey within two to three weeks after 
receiving mutually agreeable written authorization to proceed. For our baseline evaluation 
survey, we would estimate approximately two days onsite. 

We estimate preparing and submitting our written report within approximately hvo weeks after 
completing the building exterior condition evaluation work onsite. 

COMPENSATION 

We propose to provide the outlined scope of services unit rate compensation based upon the time 
and expenses required. Our consulting fee rates are $150/hr. for Principal time, $1 3 5 h .  for 
Senior Associate time, $120/hr. for Associate time, and $70/hr. for Clerical time. Reimbursable 
expenses are charged at cost plus lo%, and include such items as lodging, mileage, parking, 
outside vendor copying or printing, shipping, and other directly job-related expenses. We charge 
$506 per day for per diem when working outside of Georgia. 

We estimate a fees and expenses budget of approximately $5,500.00 for the scope of our 
building exterior condition evaluation, including walls and roofing areas, without the use of a lift 
or other access equipment. 

Invoices are issued monthly, and each invoice includes a $30 charge for the cost of our in-house 
copying and communications equipment. Payment terms are net 30 days after receipt of invoice. 

AUTHORIZATION 

We require confirming written authorization for our consulting services. For your convenience, 
you may authorize our services by executing the acceptance block at the end of this proposal, 
and returning a copy of the proposal to us. Please note that the attached "Terms and Conditions" 
are a part of this proposal, and any agreement formed between us for services. Please notitjl us if 



Mountain Brook Librarv - Mountain Brook. AL April 27.2016 
(W&A - Proposal) Page 4 

we have proposed services other than what you require, so that we may modify our proposal to 
meet your needs. 

We appreciate this opportunity to submit a proposal for our building exterior consulting services. 
Please contact us with any questions you may have regarding this proposal, or our services in 
general. 

Sincerely, 

WILLIAMSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Michael C. Allen 
Senior Associate 

ACCEPTANCE: 

Accepted for: 

Accepted by: 
(Signature) 

(Printed Namemitle) 

(Date) 



Mountain Brook Library - Mountain Brook. AL A~ril27.2016 
(W&A - Proposal) Page 5 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Services: The Consultant agrees to perform for Client the services listed. Such services are 
hereinafter referred to as "Services." Client agrees that Consultant shall have ready access to 
Client's staff and resources as necessary to perform the Consultant's services provided for by this 
contract. 

Performance: Consultant represents to Client that the services to be delivered or rendered 
hereunder will be the kind and quality designated and will be performed by qualified personnel. 
Consultant shall perform its services, to the level of competency presently maintained by other 
practicing professional consuItants in the same type of work in the same community, at the same 
site and under the same or similar conditions. Consultant makes no other representations or 
warranties, whether expressed or implied, with respect to the services rendered hereunder. 

Staff: Consultant is an independent contractor and neither Consultant nor Consultant's staff is or 
shalt be deemed to be employed by Client. Client is hereby contracting with Consultant for the 
services described and Consultant reserves the right to determine the method, manner and means by 
which the services will be performed. 

Payment for Scrvices: Client agrees to pay Consultant amounts agreed to upon receipt of proper 
invoices for Services. 

Confidential Information: Each party to this Agreement shall not disclose to any non-party to the 
Agreement, any confidential information of Such Other Party. Confidential information is 
information which relates to Such Other Party's research, development, trade secrets or business 
affairs, but does not include information which is generally known or easily ascertainable by non- 
parties of ordinary skill. Consultant hereby acknowledges that during the performance of this 
contract, the Consultant may learn or receive confidential Client information and therefore 
Consultant hereby confirms that all such information relating to the Client's business will be kept 
confidential by the Consultant. This section shall not apply to information in whatever form that 
comes into the public domain, nor shall it restrict the Consultant from giving notices required by 
law or complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a court, 
administrative agency or other authority with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably necessary for 
the Consultant to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

Insurance: Consultant shall maintain: a) commercial general liability insurance in the amount of 
not less than %1,000,000.00 for any one occurrence, b) worker's compensation insurance in 
amounts established by law, and c) professional liability insurance in the amount of not less than 
% 1,000,000.00. 

Indemnification: Client and Consultant each agree to indemnify and hold the other harmless, and 
their respective officers, employees, agents and representatives, from and against liability for all 
claims, losses, damages, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys fees, to the extent such 
claims, loses, damages or expenses are caused by the indemnifLing party's negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions. In the event claims, losses, damages or expenses are caused by the joint or concurrent 
negligence of Client and Consultant, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its 
negligence. 



Mountain Brook Librarv - Mountain Brook. AL April 27.20 16 
(W&A - Proposal) Page 6 

8. Dispute Resolution: Prior to the initiation of any legal proceedings, the parties to this Agreement 
agree to submit all claims, disputes or controversies arising out ofor in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement to non-binding mediation. Such 
mediation shall be conducted under the auspices of the American Arbitration Association or such 
other mediation service or mediator upon which the parties agree. The Party seeking to initiate 
mediation shall do so by submitting a formal, written request to the other party to this Agreement. 
This section shall survive completion or termination of this Agreement, but under no circumstances 
shall either party call for mediation of any claim or dispute arising out of this Agreement after such 
period of time as would normally bar the initiation of legal proceedings to litigate such claim or 
dispute under the laws of the State of Georgia. 

9. Complete Agreement: This agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto 
with respect to the matters covered herein. No other agreements, representations, warranties or 
other matters, oral or written, purportedly agreed to or represented by or on behalf of Consultant by 
any of its employees or agents, or contained in any sales materials or brochures, shall be deemed to 
bind the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

10. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the prior written 
consent of the other party. 

1 1. Documents All documents prepared by Consultant are instruments of Consultant's professional 
service, and Consultant shall retain ownership and property interest therein. Reuse or modification 
of any documents by Client, without Consultant's written permission, shall be at Client's sole risk 
and Client agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from all claims, damages and 
expenses, resulting from such reuse by Client or by others acting through Client. 

12. Construction Cost: Any opinions or estimates of probable construction cost by Consultant are 
prepared on the basis of Consultant's experience and qualifications and represent Consultant's 
judgment as a professional generally familiar with the industry. Consultant does not guarantee that 
proposals, bids, or actual construction cost will not vary from Consultant's opinions or estimates of 
probable construction cost. 

13. Construction Phase Services: When construction-phase services are included in the Agreement, 
Consultant will provide personnel to determine in general whether construction is proceeding in a 
manner consistent with the Documents. Consultant is not responsible for construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequencing or procedures, or for safety precautions or programs in connection 
with the Project. 

14. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated by either party by giving written notice to the 
other. If the Agreement is terminated, the Consultant shall be paid for all work performed prior to 
the notice. If Client does not make timely payments, it is cause for suspension of services. 

End of Proposal 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-059 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby accepts the professional services proposal submitted by William 
whittaker, Architect, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to design services 
for the joint fire and police training building. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of May, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of May, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountdin Brook at its regular meeting held on May 9,2016, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

William Whittaker Design of Joint Firc & Police Training Building 2016-059 



AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES ("Agreement") is made between the 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal corporation (the "City" or "Owner") and William 
Whittaker, Architect, a sole proprietor (the "Architect") effective as of the date last signed below by a party. 

Architect will provide professional design services on the following project: 

POLICEIFIRE JOINT TRAINING BUILDING IN MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL ("PROJECT") 

The Project generally consists of the devetopment/construction of a 50' by 60' metal building 
("Building") that will be located in the City on City-owned property at the end of East Street near 
the City's Fire Tower facility. The design services hereunder are described in more detail 
immediately below and elsewhere herein: 

The Architect's professional design services for the Project collectively may be referenced herein as the "Services" 
or "Work)). 

Pursuant to the t e n s ,  covenants and provisions herein, the City and Architect agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1.1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
5 1.1.l.a Basic Services. Architect will perform the following basic architectural services for the Project ("Basic 
Services") in the following sequential stages: Schematic Design; Design Development; Construction Documents; 
Bidding or Negotiation; and Construction Administration (including Project closeout). The Architect will not 
commence Work or move from one phase of the Basic Services into another phase without the written authorization 
of the City. The Scope of the Basic Services to be performed during each of these phases is set forth on Exhibit A, 
which is incorporated by reference herein. Further details related to these Basic Services and deliverables to be 
hrnished by the Archite~t that apply for this Project are set forth on Attachment I to Exhibit A, which is 
incorporated by reference. 

5 1.1.1.b Architect's Fee. Unless otherwise agreed in a written amendment to this Agreement, the lump sum fee for 
Basic Services payable to Architect with respect to its Work will not exceed $24.800, inclusive of expenses (the 
"Fee"). This Fee is set and it will not be adjusted if the amounts expended for construction of the Project are more 
or less than the City's budgeted sum or the Architect's estimated cost for construction of the Project. 

Further, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary reflected on Attachment I to Exhibit A, the Architect will not 
be compensated on an hourly basis for its Services on this Project, and the amount payable to the Architect is not 
determinable by the number of hours he expends in performing the Services. 

5 1.l.l.c Understanding on Responsibility to Provide Other Services. The parties have delineated the 
responsibilities to perform other aspects, services and functions related to the Project on the attached Exhibit B and 
Attachment 1 to Exhibit B, both of which are incorporated by reference. 

5 1.l.l.d LEED Design. Architect will not be performing LEED Design services on this Project. 

5 1.1.2 PROJECT PARAMETERS 
3 1,1,2,1 The objective or use is: 

See description of Project above. 

5 1,1.2,2 The physical parameters are: 
The Project site is located in the City of Mountain Brook. 

5 1.1.2.3 The City's program is: 
See above description of Project and the Architect's undertaking and the section immediately below. 

1.1.2.4 The legal parameters are: 
The Project site is owned by the City of Mountain Brook. Architect is an independent contractor that will 
provide professional services to the City as detailed herein. If the City undertakes to construct the 



improvements and renovations that are designed by the Architect, the City, utilizing procurement processes 
appropriate for the Project, may enter into a subsequent agreement with a contractor for it to construct the 
Project. 

5 1.1.2.5 The financial parameters are as follows. 
The cost to construct the Project is estimated in the range of % 325,000. 

3 1 .I 2.6 The time parameters are: 
Architect agrees that it will use commercially reasonable effort to complete its Work and return all 
deliverables up through the Contract Documents Phase within two (2) months of the effective date of this 
Agreement. Each party agrees to use its respective best effort to cooperate with the other so that this Work 
will be completed in an expeditious fashion. 

3 1.1.2.7 The proposed procurement or delivery for the construction work on the Project is: 
Assuming availability of funding and that all required approvals are secured, construction on the Project is 
anticipated lo commence on or about June I ,  20 16. 

5 1 .I .2.8 Other parameters are: 
None. 

3 1.1.3 PROJECT TEAM 
5 1.1.3.1 The City's Designated Representatives are: 

Chris Mullins, City of Mountain Brook Fire Department 
Thomas Boulware, City of Mountain Brook Police Dept. 

8 1.1,3.2 In addition to the City's Designated Representative, the person(s) or entity(ies) who are required to review 
the Architect's submittals to the City is (are): 

None. 

5 1.1.3.3 The City's other consultants and contractors are: 
To be determined at later date. 

5 1.1.3.4 The Architect's Designated Representative is: 

William Whittaker 
2956 Old Gadsden Highway 
Anniston, Alabama 
P 256-689-0238; F 205-278-873 1 
Email: bill@billwarch.com 

Q 1.1.3.5 The sub-consultants that, at Architect's sole expense, City have authorized Architect to retain to assist it to 
complete the Basic Services are as follows: 

The sub-consultants being retained by the Architect that are approved by the City are listed on 
Attachment I to Exhibit A. The compensation payable by the Architect to its sub-consultants is 
included in the Fee for Basic Services; the City has no obligation to pay any of these sub- 
consultants listed on this Attachment for their work on the Project and the amounts reflected on 
Attachment I to Exhibit A as fees chargeable to the Architect by his sub-consultants with respect 
to various phases of the Basic Services are being provided to the City for informational purposes 
only. 

The retention of any additional sub-consultants that Architect desires to retain must be authorized in advance by 
City. 

Architect exclusively is responsible for coordinating and managing the work performed by sub-consultants that 
Architect retains, assuring the quality and timeliness of those services, and compensating them for those services. 



5 1.1.4 Insurance Requirements: 
5 1.1.4.1 For the duration ofthis Agreement and for limits not less than stated below, the Architect shall maintain the 
following insurance with a company(ies) lawfully authorized to do business in the location of the Project and 
reasonably acceptable to City: 

. I  Comprehensive General Liability: This insurance shall cover all operations performed by or on behalf 
of the Architect, and provide coverage for bodily injury and property damage with a combined single limit 
of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate. 

.2 Automobile Liability: Automobile Liability covering owned and rented vehicles operated by the 
Architect with policy limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit and 
aggregate for bodily injury and property damage, per occurrence. 

.3 Workers Compensation: Workers' Compensation as required by statute. 

.4 Professional Liability: Professional Liability covering the Architect's negligent acts, errors and 
omissions in its performance of professional services with policy limits of not less One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per claim and in the aggregate. 

The Architect may use umbrella or excess liability insurance to achieve the required coverage for Comprehensive 
General Liability and Automobile Liability, provided that such umbrella or excess insurance results in the same type 
of coverage as required for the individual policies. These insurance requirements are in addition to and do not affect 
any indemnification obligation of Architect herein. 

3 1.1.4.2. Additional Named Insured. All policies, except for the Workers Compensation and Professional Liability 
policies shall contain endorsements naming the City, and its officers, employees and agents as additional named 
insured with respect to liabilities that arise out of and result from the operations of Architect or performance of its 
services. The additional named insured endorsement shall not limit the scope of coverage to the City to vicarious 
liability, but shall allow coverage for the City to the fullest extent provided by the policy. 

5 1.1.4.3. Policies Primary. All insurance policies required herein are to be primary and non-contributory with any 
insurance program administered by the City. 

5 1.1,4.4. Waiver of Subrogation. Architect shall require the carriers of the above-required insurance coverage to 
waive all rights of subrogation against the City, and its officers, employees, agents, contractors and subcontractors. 
Further, Architect hereby waives any rights of subrogation against the City. All general or automobile liability 
coverage provided herein shall not prohibit the Architect or its employees, agents or representatives from waiving 
the right of subrogation prior to loss or claim. 

5 1.1.4.5. Proof of Coverage. Before commencement of Services hereunder, the Architect shall provide to the City 
a certificate(s) of insurance and endorsements (including the additional insured endorsements) evidencing 
compliance with the requirements in this section. This certificate(s) shall provide that such insurance shall not be 
terminated or expire without thirty (30) days advance notice to the City. 

5 1.1.5 The information contained in this Article 1.1 may be reasonably relied upon by the City and Architect. The 
parties will negotiate in good faith to make any appropriate adjustments in schedule and to determine if any 
additional compensation should be paid if a Change in Service(s) (as defined in Section 1.3.3) occurs. 

ARTICLE 1.2 RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
5 1.2.1 The City and the Architect shall cooperale with one another to fulfill their respective obligations under this 
Agreement. Both parties shall endeavor to maintain good working relationships among all members of the Project 
team. 

5 1.2.2 CITY 
5 1.2.2.1 Unless otherwise provided under this Agreement, the City shall provide full information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project. 

Q 1.2.2.2 The City's Designated Representative(s) identified in Section 1.1.3 shall be authorized to act on its behalf 
with respect to the Project. The City shall render decisions in a timely manner pertaining to documents submitted by 
the Architect in order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of its Services. 



5 1,2,2.3 If reasonably required to complete the Project and agreed by the City in advance following a 
recommendation by the Architect, the City shall hmish the services of consultants other than those designated in 
Section 1.1.3 or authorize the Architect to furnish them. 

5 1.2.2.4 Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City shall furnish any tests, inspections and reports 
required by law (e.g. for hazardous materials if applicable). 

5 1.2.2.5 The City shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time on the Project to meet the City's needs and interests. 

5 1.2.2.6 The City shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the City becomes aware of any fault or 
defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's Instruments of Service. 

5 1.2.3 ARCHITECT 
5 1.2.3.1 The Basic Services to be performed and deliverables to be furnished by the Architect, its employees and its 
sub-consultants during the various phases of the Project are enumerated in Articles 1.1. and 1.4, and set forth on 
Attachment A (Scope of Basic Services) and Attachment I to Exhibit A (Details of Basic Services and 
Deliverables by the Architect for this Project). 

5 1.2.3.2 The Architect agrees to perform its Services according to the terms and conditions herein and in a manner 
that is consistent with professional skill and care that would be provided by other architects in its industry under 
same or similar conditions, and in the orderly progress of the Project. The Architect shall submit for the City's 
approval a schedule for the performance of the Architect's Services which initially shall be consistent with the time 
periods established for this Project; upon mutual agreement, this schedule may be adjusted as the Project proceeds. 
This schedule shall include allowances for periods of time required for the City's review, for the performance of the 
City's sub-consultants (if any), and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 
Time limits established by this schedule approved by the City shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded by 
the Architect or City; provided, however, that City reserves the right to suspend or abandon the Project for its 
convenience. In the event of such termination for convenience, the provisions of Sections 1.3.8.3 and 1.3.8.4 apply. 

§ 1.2.3.3 The Architect's Designated Representative(s) ide'ntified in Section 1.1.3 shall be authorized to act on the 
Architect's behalf with respect to the Project. 

5 1.2.3.4 The Architect shall maintain the confidentiality of information specifically designated as confidential by the 
City, unless withholding such infonnation would conflict with legal requirements, create the risk of significant harm 
to the public or prevent the Architect from establishing a claim or defense in an adjudicatory proceeding. The 
Architect shall require its sub-consultants to execute similar agreements to maintain the confidentiality of 
information specifically designated as confidential by the City. 

5 1.2.3.5 The Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any employment, interest or contribution that 
would reasonably appear to compromise its professional judgment with respect to this Project. 

§ 1.2.3.6 The Architect shall review laws, codes, and regulations applicable to its Services. The Architect shall 
respond in the design of the Project to requirements imposed by governmental authorities having jurisdiction over it. 

5 1.2.3.7 The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information 
furnished by the City. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the City if the Architect becomes aware 
of any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in such services or information. 

ARTICLE 1.3 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
5 1.3.1 COST OF THE CONSTRUCTION WORK 
5 1.3.1.1 The cost to of the work to construct the Project does not affect or impact the calculation of the Fee or the 
amount payable to Architect for Services provided hereunder. 

5 1.3.2 INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 
§ 1.3.2.1 All drawings, plans, data, calculations, reports and other documents, specifications or data created by 
Architect in connection with the Project shall be collectively referenced herein as the "Instruments of Service". The 
Architect warrants that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, it the copyright owner of 
such information or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit such infonnation for use on the Project. If 



the Owner and Architect intend to transmit lnstruments of Service or any other information or documentation in 
digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions. 

8 1.3.2.2 The Architect and tile Architect's sub-consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their 
respective lnstruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, 
statutory and other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of lnstruments of Service to 
meet official regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as 
publication in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect's sub-consultants. 

3 1.3.2.3 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexcIusive license to reproduce 
and use the Architect's lnstruments of Service for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering adding to 
the Project or other uses related to the announcement, approval, advertisement or publication of the Project, 
provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including payment of all sums when due, under this 
Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the Architect's sub-consultants that will 
run in favor of the Owner and be consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section also permits 
the Owner to authorize the construction Contractor, its subcontractors, any sub-subcontractors, and material or 
equipment suppliers, as well as the Owner's consultants and separate contractors on the Project, to reproduce 
applicable portions of the Instruments of Service for use in performing services or construction for the Project or in 
announcing, securing approval or publicizing the Project. Except for the licenses granted in this section, no other 
license or right shall be deemed granted or implied under this Agreement. 

5 1.3.2.4 In the event the Owner uses the lnstruments of Service on rt different project witllout retaining the author 
of the lnstruments of Service on that project or uses them in a manner that is inconsistent with the license granted 
herein, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect's sub-consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action 
arising from such uses. 

5 1.3.2.5 The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license 
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the 
Instruments of Service by the Owner shall be at its sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect's 
sub-consultants. 

* 

5 1.3.3 CHANCE IN SERVICE 
5 1.3.3.1 The Architect shall notify the City if Architect recommends that any work or service that was not initially 
contemplated hereunder (a "Change in Service") is required to complete its Work. If the City rejects the Architect's 
recommendation for a Change in Service, the City shall give prompt written notice to the Architect and it will not 
provide those additional services. 

If the City agrees that the additional work identified by the Architect constitutes a Change in Service, Architect may 
perform those services and receive an adjustment in compensation pursuant to Section 1 S.2 (along with any 
associated Reimbursable Expenses for that additional service if agreed by the City), or for additional compensation 
as otherwise agreed by the parties. Without prior written approval by the City, it will not make any pay for 
additional work or services not contemplated herein. 

Further, a Change in Service (which may include additional services required of Architect's sub-consultants) may 
occur after execution of this Agreement if that Change is mutually agreed in writing. Circumstances that may 
entitle the Architect to an adjustment in compensation for additional work are as follows: 

(a) The making of revisions in drawings, specifications, or other Instruments of Service when such 
revisions are: 

I .  required by a significant change in the Project that is inconsistent with the approvals or 
instructions previously given by the City, including, but not limited to, significant changes 
in the size, quality, complexity of the Project, or the City's schedule, budget, or 
procurement method; 

2. required by the enactment or revision of codes, laws or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of such documents; 

3. required as a result of the City's failure to render decisions in a timely manner, or the 
failure of performance on the part of the City or its consultants or contractors; 



4. required in connection with the evaluation and subsequent revisions of documentation 
resulting from substitutions proposed by contractors; or 

5. required in connection with any change orders or construction change directives in any 
contract between the City and its construction contractor. 

(b) Providing consultation concerning replacement of work on the Project that is damaged by 
fire or other casualty during construction, and furnishing services required in connection with 
the replacement of such work; or 

(c) Providing services in connection with a public hearing or legal proceeding, except where the 
Architect is a party thereto. 

No compensation shall be payable to Architect for any additional work or services that are attributable to the fault, 
error, or nonperformance of the Architect of its obligations under this Agreement. 

5 1.3.4 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
5 1.3.4.1 If a disagreement, claim, issue or disagreement arises between the parties with respect to the performance 
of this Agreement, the failure of a party to perform or their respective rights or obligations hereunder (a "Dispute"), 
the parties will use reasonable efforts to resolve any Dispute at the Project Team level. If the parties are unable to 
amicably resolve any Dispute at that level, each agree to escalate that matter to the senior official level for 
consideration by and potential resolution by them. If the Dispute is not resolved at the senior level, the dispute 
resolution mechanism shall be litigation in a court with competent jurisdiction that is located in Jefferson County, 
Alabama, 

5 1.3.4.2 If (i) the City should employ attorneys or incur other expenses in any legal action regarding a Dispute 
concerning negligent performance of professional services or the Architect's other failure to perform its obligations 
under the Agreement, and (ii) the City secures a final judgment before a court of competent jurisdiction or obtains 
other relief from an administrative body related thereto against the other party, the Architect will pay the reasonable 
attorneys' fees and other reasonable expenses incurred by the City in that action. 

3 1.3.5 - INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 

8 1.3.6 INDEMNIFICATION OF ClTYlEXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 
9 1.3.6.1 Claims by City against Architect. If the Architect breaches its professional-service warranty or otherwise 
defaults in performing its duties and obligations to the City hereunder, the City agrees that its claim for damages 
against the Architect for any such default shall be limited to and not exceed Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($350,000.00). The provisions in this section do not impact, modify, amend, or limit the extent or application of the 
indemnification provisions herein. 

8 1.3.6.2 Claims against City by Third Parties. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shall defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the City, and its respective agents, employees, officials and consultants (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the "lndemnitees") from and against all demands, actions, damages, judgments, losses, 
expenses (including but not limited to attorneys' fees, expert fees, court costs and other litigation costs) and claims 
(including those for bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, destruction or loss of use of tangible 
property (collectively hereinafter a "Claim") by third parties that arise out of, relate to, or result from (i) Architect's 
breach of its professional-service warranty; (ii) Architect's failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement; 
and (iii) the negligent acts, errors or omissions of Architect and its employees, agents, sub-consultants and other 
contractors, and representatives in performing its Services and Work on the Project. The parties acknowledge that. 
with respect to such Claims against the City by third parties, the scope of Architect's indemnification obligation 
under this provision (i) shall not exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) and (ii) the Architect is not obligated to 
indemnify the City for Claims caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitees. 

9 1.3.6.3 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall the City be liable to 
Architect for any special, consequential, exemplary, punitive, economic or indirect damages (including, without 
limitation, any lost profits or loss of business, loss of revenue, or loss of goodwill) arising from the City's breach, 
suspension or termination of this Agreement. 



5 1.3.7 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
5 1.3.7.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of Alabama. 

5 1.3.7.2 With respect to acts or omissions occurring prior to substantial completion of the contemplated agreement 
between City and the contractor engaged to construct the Project, causes of action between the parties to this 
Agreement for such acts or omissions shall be deemed to have accrued, and the applicable statutes of limitations 
shall commence to run, not later than the date of substantial completion of that agreement. With respect to acts or 
omissions occurring after the substantial completion of the contemplated agreement contract between City and the 
contractor engaged to construct the Project, causes of action between the parties to this Agreement for such acts or 
omissions shall be deemed to have accrued, and the applicable statutes of limitations shall commence to run, the 
date of issuance of the final certificate for payment under that agreement. 

5 1.3.7.3 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or be construed to create a right, benefit or contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or Architect. 

5 1.3.7.4 Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Architect and Architect's consultants shalt have no 
responsibility for the discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of or exposure of persons to hazardous 
materials or toxic substances in any form at the Project site. 

5 1.3.7.5 With the written consent of City (which consent may not be unreasonably withheld), the Architect may 
include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the Project in its promotional and professional 
materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable access to the completed Project to make such representations. 
However, the Architect's materials shall not include the City's confidential or proprietary information if it has 
previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific information considered by the City to be confidential or 
proprietary. The City shall provide professional credit for the Architect in the City's promotional materials for the 
Project. 

5 1.3.7.6 If the City requests the Architect to execute cenificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least fourteen (14) days prior to the requested dates of execution. The 

. . Architect shall not be required to execute certificates that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities 
beyond the scope of this Agreement. 

5 1.3.7.7 The City and Architect bind themselves, and their respective partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives, to this Agreement and to all covenants herein. Neither the City nor the Architect shall assign this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other, except that the City may assign this Agreement to an 
institutiona1 lender providing financing for the Project. In such event, the lender shall assume the City's rights and 
obligations under this Agreement. The Architect shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate such 
assignment. 

5 1.3.7.8 The Architect warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure 
this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

5 1.3.7.9 8 5 1.3.7.10. Intentionally Omitted. 

5 1.3.7.11 All notices that may at any time be required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been properly 
given if sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, and addressed as follows: 

If to CityIOwner as follows: 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Attention: Christopher Mullins 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 13 
P 205-802-3837; F 205-879-59 19 
Email: mullinsc@mtnbrook.org 

and 



City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Attention: Thomas Boulware 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 13 
P 205-802-3845; F 205-874-0639 
Email: boulwaret@mtnbrook.org 

With copy to: 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Attention: Sam Gaston, City Manager 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, A L 352 1 3 
P 205-802-3803 
Email: gastons@mtnbrook.org 

Or to Architect, as follows: 
William Whittaker 
2956 Old Gadsden Highway 
Anniston, Alabama 
P 256-689-0238; F 205-278-873 1 
Email: bill@billwarch.com 

5 1.3.7.12 Parts of the Agreement. The Agreement is comprised of the following documents: 

- This Agreement for Architectural Services; 
- Exhibit A - Scope of Basic Services 
-Attachment I to Exhibit A (Details of Basic Services and Deliverables by the Architect for this Project); - Exhibil B -Understanding on Responsibility To Provide Other Services 
-Attachment I to Exhibit B 
- Exhibit C - Hourly Rates for Additional Service if City Approves Change in Service 

These writings are the entire and integrated agreement between the City and the Architect, and supersede all prior 
negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, concerning the matters herein. This Agreement 
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the City and the Architect. In the event of any conflict 
or inconsistency between the tenns of this Agreement and those in the Exhibits or the Attachments thereto, the terms 
and provisions in this Agreement shall govern and control. In the event of any conflict between the Exhibits and the 
Attachments thereto, the terms and provisions in the Attachments shall govern and control. 

5 1.3.7.13 This Agreement may be executed (a) in counterparts, a complete set of which together shall constitute an 
original and (b) in duplicates, each of which shall constitute an original. Copies of this Agreement showing the 
signatures of the respective parties, whether produced by photographic, digital, computer, or other reproduction, 
may be used for all purposes as originals. 

§ 1.3.8 TERMINATION O R  SUSPENSION 
5 1.3.8.1 If either party defaults on a material obligation to the other under this Agreement (a "Default"), the non- 
defaulting party may terminate this Agreement if (i) the Default did not result from the acts or omission of the party 
desiring to terminate, and (ii) following the provision of wrinen notice of Default by the non-defaulting party to the 
defaulting party, the defaulting party fails to correct or remedy the Default within ten (10) days afier receipt of 
written notice. Failure of the City to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, and the 
failure of the Architect to timely provide deliverables to City, shall be considered events of Default. 

5 1.3.8.2 lf the Project is suspended by the City for more than thirty (30) consecutive days, the Architect shall be 
compensated for Services performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect 
shall be compensated for expenses incurred (if any) in the interruption and resumption of the Architect's Services. 
The Architect's fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 

5 1.3.8.3 Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the City may terminate this Agreement for its convenience 
upon not less than seven (7) days' written notice to the Architect. If the Project is abandoned by the City for more 
than 120 consecutive days, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven (7) days' 
written notice written to City. 



5 1.3.8.4 In the event of termination that does not occur as the result of a Default by the Architect, the Architect shall 
be compensated for Services performed prior to termination (together with Reimbursable Expenses, if any, that are 
payable by City) then due. The Fee payable to the Architect at the time of termination will be calculated in 
proportion to services actually performed by the Architect effective when the City provides notice of termination to 
the Architect. Architect acknowledges that the payment of this compensation is its sole and exclusive remedy 
arising From City's termination of this Agreement. 

5 1.3.8.5 If the City fails to make payment when due the Architect for Services (and expenses if payable), the 
Architect may, upon ten (10) days' written notice to the City, suspend performance of services under this 
Agreement. Unless payment in full is received by the Architect within thirty (30) days of the date of the notice of 
that Default, the suspension shall take effect without further notice. In the event of a suspension of Services resulting 
from City's failure to make payment, the Architect shaIl have no liability to the City for delay or damage caused the 
City because of such suspension. 

5 1.3.9 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT 
5 1.3.9.1 No deductions shall be made from the Architect's compensation on account of penalty, liquidated damages 
or other sums withheld from payments to contractors, or on account of the cost of changes in the expense of the 
Project. 

§ 1.3.9.2 Reimbursable Expenses (as defined in the following section) will not X /will be paid to 
Architect on this Project. (Please enter "X" in appropriate place). The Fee is inclusive of all expenses for travel, 
materials or other costs incurred by Architect (and any of its sub-Consultants) in performing the Services. 

5 1.3.9.3 If the City agrees to pay Reimbursable Expenses, the City will pay such amounts in addition to 
compensation for Basic Services (or for additional services resulting from a Change in Service). These are actual, 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Architect (and its employees and approved sub-consultants) on the Project 
and are limited to the items below: 

a. Expenses in connection with out-of-town travel that is authorized in advance; long-distance 
communications; and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over 
the Project. 
b. Expense of renderings, models and mock-ups requested by the City. 
c. If requested by the City, the expense of computer-aided design and drafting equipment time 
when used in connection with the Project. 

5 1.3.9.4 Architect shall submit invoices to City to request payment of compensation due hereunder. Architect shall 
include with each invoice supporting records that reasonably document the requested payment (including support for 
payment for any Change in Service or Reimbursable Expense, if such are payable hereunder.). The Architect shall 
maintain its supporting records for a period not less than one year after the final Project certificate for payment, and 
make those records available for inspection by City at mutually convenient times. 

5 1.3.9.5 Payments by City for compensation due Architect hereunder are due and payable thirty (30) days fiom the 
date of the Architect's invoice. Architect will submit invoices for Basic Services at the time of the completion of the 
respective Phases of the Architect's work. 

9 1.3.9.6 Notwithstanding any other provision herein, Architect acknowledges and agrees that City has the right to 
deduct From the total amount of consideration to be paid to Architect under this Agreement all unpaid, delinquent, or 
overdue license fees, taxes, fines, penalties and other amounts due the City from Architect. 

ARTICLE 1.4 SCOPE OF SERVICES AND OTHER SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
5 1.4.1. Scope. The Basic Services to be provided by Architect and deliverables to be submitted to City for the 
Project are detailed in 5 1 .I, in this section, on Exhibit A and Attachment I to Exhibit A. 

5 1.4.2 Special Terms and Conditions. 

- The City, at its expense, will provide any geotechnical services of soils at the Project site. 
- The City, at its expense, the City shall furnish tests, inspections and reports of construction 
materials, or tests at the Project site for hazardous or toxic materials. 
- The City is responsible for printing, advertising and distributing the construction documents that 



Architect will furnish and that will be used to bid and award the construction contract for the 
Project. 
-Architect, at its expense, will accommodate the City's reasonable requests to produce media 
pertinent to the Project. 

ARTICLE 1.5 COMPENSATION 
5 1.5.1 Compensation to Architect for its performance of the Basic Services shall be computed and paid as follows: 

At the conclusion of each respective phase of Basic Services, City will pay the Fee on the following schedule: 

Phase - %of Fee Amount Pd When Phase Com~leted 
Schematic Design - 10% $2480 
Design Development - 15% $3720 
Construction Documents - 60% S 14,880 
Bidding or Negotiation - 5% S 1240 
Construction Admin. (includ. closeout)- 1 O06 $ 2480 
Total Fee $24,800 

Overall Fee Summary 

Basic Services (including Civil Engineering) $24,800 
Reimbursable Exuenses None 
Maximum Total Amount Payable $24,800 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, in no event will the maximum compensation for Services payable to Architect 
(inclusive of expenses) under this Agreement exceed $24,800. 

5 1.5.2 If a Change of Service occurs and the City authorizes payment for additional service as provided in Section 
1.3.3.1, the compensation payable to Architect may exceed the amount stated immediately above. In the event that 

. the City authorizes such a payment based on an hourly rate basis, Exhibit C (Hourly Rates for Additional Service if 
City Approves Change in Service), which is attached and incorporated herein, sets forth the hourly rates for 
additional compensation of Architect (including any additional compensation attributable to services of its sub- 
consultants). 

5 1.5.3. Charges for LEED Design. Not applicable. 

(Signature page folloivs) 



In Witness Whereof, this Agreement is entered into by the undersigned, duty authorized persons or 
representatives o f  the respective parties. 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
(City or Owner) 

By: 
(Signature) 

(Type or Print Name) 

Its: 
(Title) 

Date: 

WILLIAM WWlTTAKER (Architect) 

Attest: 
City Clerk 

Witness: 

Date: 

# 



EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 

GENERAL 

5 1.1 Tlie Architect's Basic Services consist of those described in this Exhibit and include usual and customary 
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Exhibit or othenvise agreed 
to be provided by the Architect are Additional Services. 

5 1.2 The Architect shall manage the Architect's services, consult with the Owner, researcli applicable design 
criteria, attend Project meetings, communicate witli members of the Project team and report progress to the Owner. 

5 1.3 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner's 
consultants. The Architect shalt be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information 
furnished by the Owner and the Owner's consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the 
Owner if the Arcl~itect becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in sucli services or information. 

5 1.4 As soon as practicable aRer the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner's approval a 
schedule for the performance of the Architect's Services. Tlie schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for 
tlie commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial 
Information. The schedule sliall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner's review, for tlie 
performance of the Owner's consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the 
Project. Once approved by the Owner, time limits established by the scliedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, 
be exceeded by the Architect or Owner. Wit11 the Owner's approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule. if 
necessary, as the Project proceeds until the commencement of construction. 

5 1.5 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner's directive or substitution made without the Architect's 
approval. 

5 1.6 The Architect shall. at appropriate times, contact the governmental authorities required to approve the 
Construction Documents and the entities providing utility services to the Project. In designing the Project, the 
Architect dial1 respond to applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such 
entities providing utility services. 

5 I .7 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner's responsibility for filing documents 
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES 

5 2.1 Tlie Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner. and shall review 
laws, codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect's services. 

5 2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule, budget for the cost 
of the work, Project site, and die proposed procurement or delivery method and otlier Initial Information, each in 
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. Tlie Architect shall notify the Owner of (I) any 
inconsistencies discovered in the in formation, and (2)  other information or consulting services that may be 
reasonably needed for the Project. 

5 2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to tlie Owner and sliall discuss with the Owner 
alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of incorporating 
environmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shall reach an understanding witli the Owner 
regarding the requirements of the Project. 

5 2.4 Based on the Project's requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect sliall prepare and present for 
the Owner's approval a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components. 

5 2.5 Based on the Owner's approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design 
Documents for the Owner's approval. Tlie Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may 



include some combination o f  study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling. Preliminary selections o f  
major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on tlie drawings or described in writing. 

5 2.6 The Architect shall consider environmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material clioices and 
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that 
is consistent with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the cost o f  the work. The Owner may obtain other 
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4. 

5 2.7 The Architect shall consider the value o f  alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together 
with other considerations based on progam and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent 
with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the cost o f  the work. 

5 2.8 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate o f  the cost o f  the work. 

5 2.9 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner's 
approval. 

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES 

5 3.1 Based on the Owner's approval o f  the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner's authorization OF 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and tlie budget for the cost o f  tlie work, the Architect shall prepare 
Design Development Documents for the Owner's approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the development o f  the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist o f  drawings and other 
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts o f  building 
systems to tix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical systems, and such other elements as may be appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall also 
include outline specifications that identify major materials and systems and establish in general their quality levels. 

5 3.2 The Architect shall update tlie estimate o f  the cost o f  the work. 

15 3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner ofany 
adjustments to tlie estimate o f  tlie cost o f  tlie work, and request tlie Owner's approval. 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES 

5 4.1 Based on the Owner's approval o f  the Design Development Docun~ents, and on the Owner's authorization o f  
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budset for the Project, tlie Architect shall prepare 
Construction Documents for tlie Owner's approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe tlie 
further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist o f  Drawings and 
Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels o f  materials and systems and other requirements for the 
construction o f  the Project. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Project the 
Contractor will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and otlier similar 
submittals, which the Architect shall review in accordance with the Submittals section herein. 

5 4.2 The Architect shall incorporate into the Construction Documents tlie design requirements o f  governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

5 4.3 During the development ofttie Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the 
development and preparation o f  (I) bidding and procurement information that describes the time. place and 
conditions o f  bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form o f  agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor; and (3) the Conditions o f  the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and otlier Conditions). 
The Architect shall also compile a Project manual that includes the Conditions o f  the Contract for Construction and 
Specifications and may include bidding requirements and sample forms. 
5 4.4 The Architect sliall update the estimate for the Project. 

5 4.5 The Architect sliall submit tlie Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner o f  any adjustments 
to the estimate o f  tlie cost o f  the Project, make recommendations to adjust the cost o f  the Project to conform to tlie 
Owner's budget, and request the Owner's approval. 

BlDDlNG O R  NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES 



5 5.1 General. The Architect shall assist the Owner in estabIishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the 
Owner's approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (I) obtaining either 
competitive bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness o f  bids or proposals; (3) determining the 
successful bid or proposal, if any; and, (4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction. 

5 5.2 Competitive Bidding 
5 5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist o f  bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 

5 5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by 

.I procuring the reproduction o f  Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bidders; 

.2 distributing tlie Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their return upon 
completion 
of the bidding process, and maintaining a log o f  distribution and retrieval and o f  the amounts of 
deposits, if any, received From and returned to prospective bidders; 
.3 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders; 
.4 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and 
interpretations o f  the Bidding Documents to all prospective bidders in the form o f  addenda; and 
.5 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and 
distributing 
the bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 

5 5.2.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and 
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective bidders. 

5 5.3 Negotiated Proposals (If Applicable) 
5 5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of  proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 

5 5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by 

.I procuring the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, 
and 
requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process; 
.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and 
.3 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a 
summary 
report o f  the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner. 

5 5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, i f  the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and 
shall prepare and distribute addenda identiQing approved substitutions to all prospective contractors. 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

5 6.1 General 
5 6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of  the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set 
forth below and in the General Conditions o f  the Contract for Construction. I f  the Owner and Contractor modify 
AlA Document A201-2007, those niodifications shall not affect the Architect's services under this Agreement 
unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement. 

5 6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The 
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of  the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. Ttle 
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques. 
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the 
Architect be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements o f  tlle 
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect's negligent acts or omissions, but shall not 
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions o f  the Contractor or of any other 
persons or entities performing portions of  the construction work. 

5 6.1.3 The Architect's responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences with the award of the 
contract for construction and terminates on the date the Architect issues tlie final Certificate for Payment. 



5 6.2 Evaluations of ttrc Construction Work 
5 6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the Project site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise 
Agreed to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the construction work that is 
completed, and to determine, in general, if that work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not 
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On 
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of 
the portion of the construction work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations fiom the Contract 
Documents and from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and 
deficiencies observed in that work. 

5 6.2.2 The Architect has the authority lo reject construction work that does not conform to the Contract 
Documents. Whenever the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall liave the authority to 
require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or 
not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision 
made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the 
Architect to the Contractor, subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other 
persons or entities performing portions of the construction work. 

5 6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or construction Contractor. The Architect's response to 
such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 

5 6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable 
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form ofdrawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not 
show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The 
Architect's decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the 
Contract Documents. 

5 6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an initial decision maker, the 
Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract 
Documents. 

5 6.3 Certificates for Payment to Construction Contractor 
6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such 

amounts. The Architect's certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the 
Architect's evaluation of the construction work and on the data comprising the Contractor's Application for 
Payment, that, to the best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belief, the Work has progressed to the point 
indicated and that the quality of the work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing 
representations are subject (I) to an evaluation of the work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon 
Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of minor deviations from 
the Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 

5 6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (I) made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from 
subcontractors and material suppliers and otlier data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor's right to 
payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of 
the construction contract sum. 

5 6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment. 

5 6.4 Submittals 
5 6.4.1 The Architect shall review the construction Contractor's submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably 
delay or witlil~old approval. The Architect's action in reviewing submittals sllall be taken in accordance with tlre 
approved submittal schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while 
allowing sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. 



5 6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall review and approve or 
take other appropriate action upon the Contractor's submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, 
but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept 
expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy 
and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or perfonnance of equipment 
or systems, which are the construction Contractor's responsibility. The Architect's review shall not constitute 
approval of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate 
approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. 

5 6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or 
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the 
appropriate perfonnance and design criteria that such services must satisfl. The Architect shall review Shop 
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the 
Contractor that bear such professional's seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The Architect shall be 
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals 
performed or provided by such design professionals. 

Q 6.4.4 The Architect shall review and respond to reasonable requests for information about the Contract 
Documents. The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests for information. 
Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the 
Specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The 
Architect's response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and 
Specifications in response to requests for information. 

Q 6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

5 6.5 Changes in the Work 
'5 6.5.1 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the construction work that are consistent with the intent of 
the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the construction contract sum or an extension of the 
Contract Time. The Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the 
Owner's approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

5 6.5.2 The Arcliitect shall maintain records relative to changes in the construction work. 

5 6.6 Project Completion 
Q 6.6.1 Tlie Architect shall conduct inspections to determine tlie date or dates of Substantial Completion and the 
date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; receive from the Contractor and fonvard to 
the Owner, for the Owner's review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract 
Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection 
indicating the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

5 6.6.2 Tlie Architect's inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the 
construction Contractor of work to be completed or corrected. 

Q 6.6.3 When the work is found to be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the 
balance of the construction contract sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained 
from that contract sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the work. 

5 6.6.4 Tlie Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (I) 
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2) 
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other 
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. 

Q 6,6.5 Upon request of tlie Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial 
Completion, the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the 
facility operations and performance. 



ATTACHMENT I T O  EXHlBlT A -FURTHER DETAILS ON BASIC SERVICES AND 
DELIVERABLES BY THE ARCHITECT O N  THIS PROJECT 

See following pages. 



EXHIBIT B - UNDERSTANDING ON RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE OTHER SERVICES 

Special Notes: The Architect is not providing any materials testing or services related to special inspections as part 
of its Basic Service. 

Other Services 

Programming (B202Thl-2009) 

Multiple 
Measured drawings 
Existin~ facilities surveys 
Site Evaluation and Planning 
(B203Th1-2007) 
Building Information Modeling 
(E202T"-2008) 
Civil Engineering 

Landscape design 
Architectural Interior Design 
(B253Th'-2007) 
Value Analysis (B204Thl-2007) 

Detailed cost estimating 
On-site Project Representation 
(8207'"-2008) 
Conformed construction documents 

Responsibility (Architect, Owner 
or Not Provided) 

Not provided 
Not provided 
Not Provided 
Not Provided 
Not Provided 

Not Provided 

Provided by Architect 

Not Provided 
Not Provided 

Not Provided 

Not Provided 
Not Provided 

Not Provided 

Service Description (See 
Description, Notes or Aitachnte~lr I 
be10119 

I 

See Attachment 1 to Exh B for scope 
of these services to be provided by 
Architect's sub-consultant ; charges 
for these services are included in Fee 
for Basic Services 

As-Desi gn ed Record drawin 6 s Not Provided 
Not Provided 

Post occupancy evaluation 
Facility Support Services (B210Th1- 
2007) 
Tenant-related services 
Coordination of Owner's consultants 
Telecommunications/data desi n g 

Not Provided 
Not Provided 

Not Provided 
Not Provided 
Not Provided 

Security Evaluation and Planning Not Provided 

Commissioning (82 1 1ThL2007) Not Provided 
Extensive environmentally Not Provided 

LEEDm Certification (BZ 1 4Tht20 12) 
Fast-track design services 
Historic Preservation (B205mL 
2007) 
Furniture, Furnishings, and 
Equipment Design 
(B253Th'-2007) 
Geotechnical Services 

Not Provided 
Not Provided 
Not Applicable 

Not Provided 

Not Provided by Architect 



ATTACHMENT I TO EXHIBIT B 

See following pages. 



EXHlBIT C 
HOURLY RATES FOR ADDlTlONAL SERVICE IF CITY APPROVES CHANCE IN SERVICE 

See hourly rates for Architect and Architect's Sub-consultants shown on Attachment I to Exhibit A. 



Attachment 1 to 

EXHIBIT "A" 

January 25,201 6 

Chris J. Mullins, MSEM 
Deputy Chief 
Mountain Brook Fire Deparlment 
102 Tibbett Street 
Birmingham, Alabama 35213 

Bill Whittaker, AIA 
w w w . b i l l w a r c h . c o m  

blC@billwarch.com 
256.689.0238 

2956 Old Gadsden Hwy 
Annmtm. Alabama 362ffi 

Re: FEE PROPOSAL 
A NEW 501X60' MBFD I FD TRAINING FACILITY 

Mr. Mullins, 

I woukl like to thank yw for the opportunity to present a proposal for your teview and commend. Below is 
an outline of the proposed services for your review and comment. 

PROJECT SERVICES SUMMARY Stipulated Sum of $24,800,000 
Architectural services 

Building code analysis and life safety plan 
w Construction drawings: Floor plans, Building sections, Wall section, Elevations, Schedules, and 

Details 
Bidding and Negotiations with contractors 
Specification manual 
Construction observation - periodic 
Additional services billing ram: $750per hour 

Structural Engineering sewices by Bamett, Jones, Wilson 
Foundation design 
Framing plans and details. 
Two site visits included in fee 
Does not include retaining wall design if required 
Additional services billing rates: $500 per additional site visit/$750per hour 

Civil Engineering senrices, JBW&T Enbineers 
Survey of scope of work limits 
Site Layout Plan 
Drainage, Grading, and Utility Plans 
Erosion Control Plans 
Details 
Retaining wall design specifications 
See attached services letter for full description of work. 
Additional services billing tales: $750per hour 

Mechanical Engineering services, Whorton Engineering -fee $4000 
HVACdesign 
Plumbing design 
Site visits included in fee 
Additional services bi/ling rates: $250 per hour senior engineer, $80 per hour draffer 

c o m m e r c i a l  j r e s i d e n t i a l  I e d u c a t i o n a l  I i n d u s t r i a l  I i n t e r i o r  d e s i g n  I r e n d e r i n g s  



Electrical Engineering services, McCarter Engineering - fee $3000 
Electrical design 
Site lighting, canopy lighting, and surface mounted building lighting 
Site visits included in fee 
Additional senfices billing rates: $750per hour 

DELIVERABLES: 
All printing needed for review and approval of owner 
10 copies of 24x36 final construction I permit drawings I bidding 
Electronic PDFs of final construclion I permit drawings (no restrictions and may reproduce as 
needed) 

EXCLUSIONS AND LIMITATIONS: 
Fire alarm and sprinkler design services, if required, are not included 

w Fixed fee has been proposed, but under no circumstances shall work provided by architect to 
exceed 200 hours. All work required over 200 hours requested by Owner shall be paid as 
additional services. 
No Landscape design is included 
A limit of 10 drawings sets for permitting I bidding1 permitting. All additional sets to be billed at cost 
to the Owner. 
Geotechnical services are excluded. 
All Newspaper ads required for bidding will be paid by Owner. Owner will contact newspaper and 
arrange to run ads. Architect will provide wording for the Advertisement for Bids. 

ADDIVONAL SERVICES: 
Any additional services not defined in the tiered services and requested by the client will be billed at a rate 
as indicated in the project services summary.. No additional work will be performed without written request 
by Owner. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND COMMENTS: 
I recommend on all of my projects a geotechnical report to get accurate data on the soil conditions for 
foundations, retaining walls, paving, etc. Geotechnical engineering is not incEuded in the above tiered 
senrices. As always our team's ability to perform a quality service is directly related to the information you 
provide us for the project. 
Again thank you for the opportunity to present a proposal. We hope that we will be able to work on your 
project and deliver an outstanding service. Please feel free to call or email me if you have anv auestions. 

Sincerely, 

Bill Whittaker, AIA 

c o m m e r c i a l  j r e s i d e n l l a i  I e d u c a l i o n a l  I industrial I i n t e r l ~ r  d e s i g n  I renderings 
P a g e  2 01 2 



Attachment 1 to 

Exhibit "6" 

JB W&T, MC. 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS AND LAN0 SURVEYORS 

P 0 BOX 831 r I54A JE STER PARKWAY 

GAOSOEN r4UBAMA 31902 RAINBCIWG11Y. ALABAMA 35UD6 

. TELEPHONE p5B) 547.8379 FAX (2%) 547-3484 

mwv jewr mm 

January 8,20 16 

Bill Whi ttaker, AIA 
3,956 Old Gadsden Hwy 
Anniston, AL 36206 

Re: Proposal for Joint Training Facility 
Police Department and Fire Department of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Dear Bill: 

As per your request, our firm has prepared this proposal to provide civil engineering services for 
the development of site plans for the above referenced project. The following are the services we 
will provide along with the associated fees: 

1) Site Survey (Topography, set control points, utility Iocotians, location of planned onsite 
sewer disposal area with survey locations of any known infrastructure between the proposed 
building and the effluent disposal field and storm water detention area topogmphy)(See 
attached survey limits map) 

PEE hourly not to cxcecd = $2,700.00 
2) Civil Engineering: 

A) Existing Conditions 
B) Demolition Plan (Sitework only) 
C) Site Layout Plan 
D) Grading Plan 

Stomwater detention design, details and calculations to comply with Mountain 
Brook Muni-Code. 

E) BMP Plan 
A Construction General Permil will be required for this silt. Operators / owners of 
ail regulated construction sites must implement and maintain effective erosion and 
sediment controls in accordance a Construction Best Management Practices Plan 
(CBMPP) prepared and certified by a Qualified Credentialed Profcssional (QCP), 
Also, due to the location of the site within the Cahaba River Watershed, we wiIl be 
required to submit a CBMPP with the request for ADEM permit coverage, 
Construction cannot commence until ADEM's approval or 30 days have passed 
after submitral of documentation to ADEM, A QCP or Qualified Credentialed 
Inspector (QCI) conduct regular inspections of regulated constnlction activities to 
ensure effective erosion md sediment controls are being maintained. Due to the 
proximity of the site to the Cahaba Rivcr, it is possible that ADEM could require 
turbidity monitoring for the construction site. 



Mr. Bill Whittaker 
January 8,20 16 
Page 2 

Conslruction General Permit-ADEM 
r Notice of Intent ($1 155.00-ADEM fees) 

Construclion Best Management Practices Plan (CBMPP) (Submined with NOI) 
Spill Prevention Conlrols and Countermeasures Plan (SPCC) 
Stormwater Inspections 
Turbidity Monitoring (ADEM) 

Stormwater Detention Permit-City of Mountain Brook 
Pre-design conference 
Stormwater Velocity Calculntions 
Detention 2-yr thru 1 00-yr, 24-hour storms 
Dry Reservoir Design 
Letter of Application 
Review Fees ($400.00-ci ty fees) 

F) BMP Notes And Details (Note: The plans, specs, etc must comply with the! MS4 
requirements.) 

G) Misc. Details 
H) Contract Specifications 
I) Utility Design and Details Coordination and design for potable water supply connection, 

sanitary sewer effluent discharge, piping, pump, etc. in order to coordinate with the 
onsite sanitary sewer disposal system (permit obtained by others). 

FEE= 53,700.00 
(Note: This fee does not include and local or  state permit fees) 

As always our firm apprecintes the opportunity to provide our services to you. IF you have my 
questions in regard to this proposal, pleq~l;,- our ofice. If this proposal meets your approval, 
please sign below and return a copy &0\$&fk.4a&~tice ........ to proce@,~ I P I , , ,  

s ?..$GENS&*.. .p r, *\* P. a 4 ,>., 
$ .+ -'' p." '. ... . . . .. 0 .. c, Sincerely, ." 4 " F" .,,*,-J 5- 
2 :  . = * ...' - .  - : =, :*,.- .. * z * : NO.  22094 . - = + I  :*" ,  
3s ~ P R O F E S S ~ ~ N ~ ~  I *e E X (  * . I  ,- : ' *i 
A -a* 

,: q-3 5 '5 ..#. ..: yz 3%:. LAND '.o ".eeVEq8:--&.a -J,"P~.m...,. , .e,:!:.'.jj .- +,,% ..... \?,# /,;-/v s+\l;,*' 
Houston Jenkins, Jr., P.E./P.L.S. G/,$,Ei iF$$,t\ '~~,,,,ll,t~' 

Architect will sign agreement with civil engineer 
HJIjo once Owner I Architect Agreement is signed. This 

service will be included within the architect's proposed fee 
Proposal Accepted By: 

Authorized Signature Date 
NOTE Camptnrallon wlll be In rccordance wlththt ~bourefefmcr  propatal. Ulcnt asreu to pay a0 t h a l ~ a  not In dtspute wlthln 30 d a y  of rrcelpt o l  invdcr and 
trca~nUc1 mar chatpc not p J d  wlthln 3Odryr #re rubjcn to a btc payment chrr(e of 1 S pcrrtnt of Ihe brdrnce due lor tach add l lbd  month w trdlm thereof 
thrl vndllwted d r r r l u  Irrntln unpald. Clent rarcar I w  pay cosl o l  coltectlon. Includln~ truonlble ansrney'r lets, 1 lnvolcn are mllectsd by I ~ W M  thmuth m 
bttafmey. CUem lunhrr a l r e a  that JBWILThas lhe lltllt towpcnd w lermlnrte ~trvicc If undl%putcd du rg t i  ace notpaMwirhtn45 dqsod rcctlpr of lflWbT!nudce 
~ n d  rgtter lo  w l k a  m y  rlalm splnlt  lflW&T and to Indcrnnlfy &rend nnd hold JBWht h;lrmlc$s Ifam md atalnst m y  clblm arlrln( IrornJ8W&T1 rurptrulon uf 
termlnallon due to Cllenl'r lallurc lo provldc tlmcty pavent  P.\PRDWSA~\PI~~O~III - 2015. Hovftnn\BlltHlhltl~L~~\Mwnt~In Btook FlreTralnln&Farlluy\Proporbl I- 
7 I6 doc 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

BLACKJACK HORTICULTURE, INC. 
DATED MAY 9,2016 

THIS ADDENDUM ("theithis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and William Whittaker, Architect ("the Contractor") dated 
May 9,2016. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly acknowledged 
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Defi~ritions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "Tlie (tliis) Agt-eerrrerrt " refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by tlie City in exchange therefor. 

C. "Tlte Coittructor " refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement wit11 the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as tlie Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbitrution; Mciiintiort; Alierrtnte Dispute Resoliition. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent ( I )  the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of tlie arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorrrey's Fees; Coiirt Costs; Litigntion Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of3  



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence o f  any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Pnynrent Cltnrges; Fees; Itrterest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds o f  one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition o f  a complete 
and accurate bil l  by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution o f  the dispute. 

5. I ~ z ~ l e n r n i ~ i o r t ;  Hold-Hnrrtrless; Relense; Wniver; Li~~~itatiotrs of Linbiliiy or Renretlies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnifjr, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause o f  action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out o f  or relating to the subject matter o f  the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief o f  any kind that i t  may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach o f  
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent o f  any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms o f  tlie agreement, and void. 

6. Clioice of Lnw; Clioicc of Vetrite or FO~IIIII .  The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions o f  the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws o f  the State o f  Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise requii-ed by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue o f  any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason o f  any asserted breach o f  duty 
arising out o f  or relating to the performance or nonperformance o f  the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles o f  
law. 

Co~zstrircfiu~t ofAtlderrdcitn. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of tlie Contractor against tlie 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against tlie 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
o f  law. 

8, Alabnrtrn Inrtrrigratiotr Larv Conrplintzce Contract. Contractor agrees that i t  will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act o f  1986, as amended by tlie lmmigration Act o f  
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes i t  
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verifL tlie eligibility to legally work in tlie United States 
for all o f  its new hires who are employed to work in the State o f  Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an oficer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-VeriQ 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 9th day of May, 20 16. 

William Whittaker, Architect 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-160 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the [sole] 
bid to extend the left turn lane on Overbrook Road at Montevallo Road presented by Dunn Construction 
Company, Inc. is hereby accepted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by tlie City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed to issue a purchase order and to 
execute such other documents determined to be necessary with respect to said turn lane extension. 

ADOPTED: This 9th day of May, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 9th day of May, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of tlie City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on May 9,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

Bid Award for Overbrook Road at Montevallo Road Turn Lane Extension 



Y Y N  10 

Mountain Brook 

L I ~  DI Mountain a r m    at^ - w e r a m  gg Manrevalo I urn Lane utrenslon 

Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> 

Overbrook @ Montevallo Turn Lane Extension 
1 message 

Ronald Vaughn <vaughnr@mtnbrook.org> 
To: Steve Boone cboones@mtnbrook.org> 
Cc: Sam Gaston <gastons@rntnbrook.org> 

Thu, May 5,2016 at 1:31 PM 

Steve, 

We opened bids for the subject project this morning and received only one bid. The bid from Dunn Construction 
is $141,000.00 and everything appears to be in order. With this amount being under what we have budgeted I 
recommend we award the contract to Dunn Construction. 

Thanks 

Ronnie Vaughn 
Public Works Director 
City of Mountain Brook AL 
3579 East Street 
Birmingham , Alabama 35243 
205.802.3865 Office 
205.967.2631 Fax 
vaughnr@mtnbrook.org 



THIS AGREEMENT made the 9th day of m, 2016, by and between Dunn 
Construction Company, Inc. ("CONTRACTOR") and THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALABAMA ("the City"). 

WHEREAS, Contractor has been determined by the City to be the lowest responsible 
bidder in response to the City's invitation to bid for Right Turn Lane Extension on Overbrook 
Road at Montevallo Road, dated May 9,201 6; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor deem it desirable to formalize and memorialize the 
terms and conditions of their contract; 

NOW, THEREFORE, this agreement: 

1. Contractor shall provide a Right Turn Lane Extension on Overbrook Rd at 
Montevallo Rd in Mountain Brook, AL in accordance with the terms, provisions and conditions 
of the specifications made the basis of the City's invitation to bid and at the rate proposed by 
Contractor in the proposal submitted to the City in response thereto. The City's invitation to bid 
and the bid specifications set forth therein, as well as Contractor's bid proposed in response 
thereto (Appendix I), are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

# 2. This contract shall be terminable by the City for cause on ten days' written notice 
to Contractor, provided that Contractor shall have a reasonable opportunity to cure or correct any 
deficiency in performance that is the basis of a proposed termination for cause. Either party may 
terminate the contract without cause on sixty days' notice to the non-terminating party. 

ATTEST DUNN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, MC. 

Its: Its: 

ATTEST THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALABAMA 

By: By: 

Its: Its: 



ADDENDUM T O  AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 
DUMV CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 

DATED MAY 9,2016 

THIS ADDENDUM ("theithis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Dunn Construction Company, Inc. ("the Contractory') 
dated May 9,2016. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting o r  inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein o r  under othenvise applicable law, or  to (b) 
reduce, restrict, o r  eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or supplement of o r  to the principal agreement, whether o r  not expressly acknowledged 
o r  incorporated therein. No agent, employee, o r  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, o r  suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms o r  provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

I .  Dcflrritiorts. For purposes o f  this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City o f  Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The @is) Agreement" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefore. 

C. "The Coitiractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

2. Arbitrutiort; Medinliorr; Airerrmute Dispiite Resoli~tiort. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means o f  resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is  a precondition to the 
pursuit o f  other legal remedies, but only to the extent (I) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs o f  such 
proceedings (including the fees o f  the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Aftorrtey's Fees; Corirt Costs; Litigation Experrses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 
and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence o f  any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefore. 



4, Late Paynterrt CItarges; Fees; Ittterest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds o f  one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shat l not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution o f  the dispute. 

5. Iitdenttti~ntion; Hold-Hi~rittless; Release; Waiver; Litnitations of Liability or Remedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemniQ, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause o f  action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out o f  or relating to the subject matter o f  the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief o f  any kind that i t  may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part o f  tlie Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms o f  the agreement, and void. 

d Choice of Lnw; Choice of Vettire or Forrsrr, The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement o f  
terms and provisions o f  the agreement and tlie resolution o f  any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of tlie State o f  Alabama except to tlie extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue o f  any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason o f  any asserted breach o f  duty 
arising out o f  or relating to the performance or nonperformance o f  the agreement sliall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles o f  
law. 

7. Cortstrrrctiot~ of Ailflertdut~~. Nothing in this Addendum sliall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor o f  the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is  available to the City against tlie 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
o f  law. 

X+ Alnbnrttn Itt~tt~igrntiort Lnw Cotrtplinrrce Corrtrnct. Con tractor agrees that i t  will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act o f  1986, as amended by the Immigration Act o f  
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes i t  
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in tlie United States 
for all o f  its new hires who are employed to work in the State o f  Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-VerifL 
Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout tlie entire course o f  its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit tlie E-VerifL Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of  Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any o f  its subcontractors, or any 



other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and liold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 9th day of May, 201 6. 

Dunn Construction Company, Inc. 

By : 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 



REcrrvre 
DUIJ!; BID COVER SHEET 

~l~~~'I,'.;!J;.Ll ,'; CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 CHURCH STREET 

2016 APR 2 1 AH 11: 2 1 MOUlr-rAIN RROOK, ALABAMA 35113 
OFFlCE OF PURCHASIM; ACEhT (CITY MANAGER) 

RIGHT TUHX LANE EXTEh'SlOiV 011' OVERBROOK HD. AT MONTEVALLO RD. 

Bid Rcqi~cst Fated tlris Dutr: fivril24.2016 Rid In be Optncd this Dalc and Time: PIov 5.2016 Ta? 9:m a.m. 

[lids shall bc scalcd n11d dcliwrcd to lhb OfTice nTtlic Puxh;~Jng A e r ~  in ~ h c  C'it) Ilrlt, Citj orbfuuntrin 
Ilrmk, Atab~tna, priur lo t l i ~  ahme spccificd date und iimc. Ilih shall hr ~luUic-lj opsned u! rhc dutc md rime 
~ l f i w d  ahnlc or ns sonn ns pntcticnh!~ rhcma!\ur. 

iu hr: cnnsidertd bj  thu I'll). H hid llioa *~mpl_r rrilh Alab~nla I:i\t~. including. hut not l i ~ n i l ~ d  to. Aln CC& 
{I9751 $$41-1(1-%) vr xtz] i ~ q d  31.15-1 rr srq. a ~ d  pnlridc Jorrmrntatinn u l  tnmllmonl in Ihc I<-Vcrif} prognm 
purlurlnt to Ah. Ciidc 43 I-13-Y. 

All hiddcrs niusl use thc hid lbmr prur i d d  bj Ihc Cil) Tot 1f1s prjact. 'I his Aid L'urcr Shce~ should hc 
airnplcrri! and suhmtttcd !sir:? thc bid. Bidi cnn~plcicd in pncil \till nu11 bc a ~ u p l d ,  llids should br ctrarlj nlarkcd 
"Sl:Al.EI) 1311)" and indicate orr ilic out~idc d t f l c  cttrckqx lhc p:ojccl for which thc hid is auhmiticd and ths dab: OF 
hM owning. ,\liih;mia (icnml C'onlnctnr's I icr.n,c ntlnihsr sk l l  be clurl: murk4 nn t i l t  cl~rtsidc or the cnvclupc. 

Ihc C'ilj rrwrsm rhc ripltl lo r~q:~irc u hid hund. in rrhtch ciiw s p ~ i t i c  intiwr~~nlinn SIIPI! hc pnwidcd \rith 
l ! ~  fCMIJUC?li fi)l \(lid\. 

Ihe I'~o h'scnts tljc rip111 tfr u!iiLr life cycle cmt ~ 8 l j s i s  ill dtlasrj~tiing ILc Inrvusl rtspmsiblc hidrlzr. in 
\bhich usst syccilic inhnni~!ior: shnll hc. pair idd aih thc xqtlcsi f i~r  bids 

.---. ---- 
Speclficalions Ebr Projrrl No. hll 117-2016: For the Right Turn Lnne E~tensian nn Overbrook Rd. 81 
Monte\rlIo Rd. in tllc Citj- of Moanraln Brook, AL. . - - -. -.-- - 1 

--.I 

HIUDER I g n n  Construction Company, I ~ c .  ----- 'I'I:I,I;.P~K)NI; 205-592-3866 .. - 

Birmingham C11Y ----- --a - - -- 
DID TOTAL (PER SPECIFICATIOXS) S JY 1,. 000.00 

Natc: MlfNlCIPA1.ITIES ARE EXF:filPT FROM S1'A1i'E SALES TAX 

Pti~jecr Manngcr: Ktrnald Vaughn 203-802-386-3: cnluil vuuphnfifim\nbrook.uq 



Specifications for Projcct No. R.1107-2016: For Right Turn Lane Extension on 
a Ovcrbroo!< Road at Montcvallu Rd. 

Ccncral Rcquircnlcnts: 

T11c swccssful bidder sllall providc ~ r i f i c  a)ntrol. firnish all materials, supplies, 
ciluipnient, fuct. tools. i111d perfbmi all labor to properly complctc the Right I'urt~ turlu 
Extonsion on Ovcrbrooh Road at Montevz~llo Rd. to nlcct thc City of Mountain 13rook's 
regulations. 

\Vork cnn not start heforc Mny 30.2016 n~ld niust bc co~npletcd by August 5,201 6. 

Uiddcr niust carry the following tlpcs of insurmcc with minimum covuragc lirnils us 
spccificd helo\v: 

A M'orkcr's Compensation: nu rcquircd by law 
U. I*:mpIo!.cr's 1,iability; 5 1,000,000 cach occurrence 
C Bodily Injut). exccpt auto: % 1.000.1100 each occurrcncc 
I)+ I'ropcrly I).~nlagc. csccpt nuto; $1,000,000 cncll occurrcnce 
+ I~scess tlmhralln; S1.000,000 cncll occurrence 

Ijiddcr rliilst furnisl~ lllc city with o sutisfactory ccrtificatc of imurmcc specificall> 
naming the C'it? trl'Mountuin Rrook as the insured. During thc tcml of this contract. thc 
contruclor shalt furnish thc City cvidcncc ofthc rcncwal of all i~isunnce policies at least 
thirty (30) dajs prior la tlicir expiriltion. 

Sprcific Rcquirrmcnts: 

I h e  objective o f  this pniuct is to cistctid rhc csisritiy northbound right turn lo~ie on 
Ovorbrook Road ut ~ h c  ~~Ionlcvsllo Raid intcrwction to i~lcluds 200 fict of storagc and 
I00 feet rrf taper. 1'0 ncconimodatc tlic 10 tilot wide lntles the ectltcrlinc of tile road will 
bc shifted slightly, tlw existing sidc\\alk and curb alld guttcr wit1 bc reniovcd to allo~\. for 
the construction o f  the turn lane. 'The entire width of Overbrook Road from O\'erbrook 
lane to the cross~ialk at Montc\atlo Knad shull be milled 1.5" ilt~ci overlaid \vitl.r 1.5" 
wwaring surface. 

'Ilic pavenient s t r ~ ~ c t t ~ r ~  sIi:~ll he: 
1.3" ~vuoriny surface, 3" bindcr coursc. und 6" uf usphaIt basc. 
300 linear rtet of 24" vullcy gt~ttet 
20 lilieor thct of 18" curb and putlur svith a 
transition of 10 feet. 

3.50 linear fect of 4' I\-ide side\\nlli will connect to t11c csisting sidewalk. 

Additianal irdms \vi l l  inclt~dc thwe (3 J drive\vq cmssilig. two (I) ~iiuilbc~xes 
rclocatian. t\vo (2)  water muter relocation. strippiilg iuid pavcmcnt innrkings. 

All ncw striping shall bu Ihcrmoplustic. Any csisting striping in conflict with the 
ptnpossd improvcnimts shall he re~novcd. 



One ( I  ) A[)A cotrlplirtnt sideivalk nanp will bc installed itt tile existing cross\valk 

All mna-clc shall be ochre colorcd uyilh u nii~~iniu~n 300(1 psi. 

'I'tvo ((7) iwtv quailr-uplc loops 1%-ilh lcod-in wircs and co~~dui t  rut^ to cabinel rvill be 
~'cquirud. Otlt (1)  new pult has shnti hc inslalied in alignment with esisting directional 
borc. 

Additii~nal itcn~s sliall include onc ( I  ) ncw 5-Scction Siptiat I lcad to be it~stallcd ulony 
with a 7 Conducbr Signal Wire run lo thc cabinet, and the passiblc need for the 1'1 
I'cdcslrian I ' L I S ~ I ~ U ~ ~ O I I  height be ndjtrstcd ta mcct ADA ticigl~l reqoircn~cnts. 

Iiefcr to tlic accon~pnnjit~y dingrn~~~s and psc!jcci worksl~ect tvhcn 1.cvicwing this pr'ojuel. 

large plrllis nlax bc obtai~lcd ot 'I'tlu hiluunlriin Brook I'rtblic l h r k x  1)cpartment locatcd 
at 3579 Ehst Sll-cet Mattntait~ 13rar~k. Al, 35243. 



I'rt~jcc~ hIanager: Ronald Vaughn 305-802-3865: email \-uunhnrit~niltlhmt~k~orq 









1 - C W ~ W  1a I. I ~ # ~ . I L W - C I  LW,~C. .~  LW I'IC~V O.I~IIII~I.I .Y .LI,.I .rm 
WUIY ~i 
*I*ICI11.m ~ t l a - Y Y I 9 1 l c 1 ~ 1  m ~ c ,  41 *i*%.u= .u. . ~LLC. .  1.1 R I ' ~  I -I..-UI I- a u f .  r.mmw a.wnr- -I/'CI.-II. . * -+ lrr ' * - rh.r .ntr  , r n m r I n  .~ ra .mt . r rq r~ . .  .-I.* 
L8L.I~'**II i.Lt:r.LIC .CI* ,.=.a*. ,I*, . IYIC*:.nIC 

n L I * q m . l l d l  M.lMl.1 LCII1.I. I--'# W I Y * - I  * W b L I m # I  ..T ''I* I # #  W L a - . h + * -  r 
m. r*--rr - n r - r r m r + - n l u  . . + ~ r  
I.*..."..,,, ".*IL.. .*.I I#.- .,.I $ * * * C "  

'* - r*r--"--r-nnr** 
udt-mw nrr-nrrc - * u n J r * . a b  rl:~-?$~:><''*"'' 'C"HLm-l 

-lll*l s % I o D A I ~  .a ..I~II #.mu I.#+ n n w- -&.#11bn 

. * *  ~ . . * + u ~ ~ # I ~ ~ ~ ~ I - I . I L - I I  I m u a s  .H. +I~.I.LI*IY~~u~ . I - a 1 1 4  m a r  . - $ * * l m  
..ma.. *.l'*..I'* *.*l*ma 1.III. * * a  41 . r ..I**.. *,..*l+..mI.* 1 -I.. 

*:Hr7m m u  *h * . aa&WU .#YI*.Y%. I.+-*I I -&.-ll111. I+. I 4  N w  am 1 4 1 
I- . I ~ L  ~ m r n .  n r  a n  m wr r r l - s r  r -:m.r .:.,I - 

* .l *I. Y 1  ,-...1"~,'~11181.. j.lN. WI~.." ..*I.. . I.-.....* .."I.. . l a p  .I Ii 
4 rm- - a - o  *rrr*--rrcr . r m r r r L m r  M m r n r n r c . .  410s-r*• * .mr .dr r r -d -  
"umr * . r n . r m r r u l . r  ~r .n m r r * m ~ r  m -  r r l . a h r  .08a-. -+ w * * m - .  18 .r 

r *.. 3 - a 1  I- ..11.-1-. - .-..mmen..- 1" .-..LI- -11, *+I m r r r  .*mrr.url .. -I 

. m.*n.*s.v I- r - r t r r t  WEW. 11. SUM. r lqr .  r r s  - - a  ..be ~ M N  
*am*,. ..ld,Y'+l " l . - . . . * l r l m l l r l  IPG.-.L * I I%. II t I. % 1 r I  1.1 1:l?:lL 
4.*1.* I .U C r'.lUI1'... I*. , . . # C I # I  U& 

IWL . . . ~ - r . ~ * l . ~ - . ~ - - * r r - r - - - -  I**YI-I-. s . t , . : e w . ~ r r  --I- - rk*.lr - r r .  -+, m a  - a n -  .# r..v- - m a -  r n ,  v w ~ r  .r .;-.A . #mr... --.- . 
L 7 -  . I..U..-lb.I.. 1 1 9  m i - ,  IC. I S  .ilC#".FYll.t. I. C I.+ . I  a - .  + * I ' W I 1 Y l .  - L I- .I* .-I- I~LIIW... a#-*r 

CIL I S .  r * ~.Llr.*.' -W l lU.1-  b% m l9n.l Cv .-. --'-.LU 

.I '* #IC nu r i a  I-r r' I .r m r t r  I r r ? = *  ~II -s -I r . n nrr O'c . r r m  re - r rs. - r*r ,.rr 
DSXV l m n . ~ % 4 m & l  m a ..us* **+La . ~ r * ~ a . ~ ~ u ~ . r i + w ,  -4 

T. - - m w m . o - s .  tv cmaaa,ma. ,uuh . I m In?*.- a .mkm*a>a m a#.  PI.--^' v nt. - 
n..r - - - v r imn  % -rn r. . s r . - m  8-m r m n w n r * n r . r .  i r . e m s .  m - :rr 
mI n t . . .ard#r . -  as-r  r w . u d r t ~ n  :-a -.A -MI rrbrr -11 wr&.-r. n r u .  # - * l c l * * r  

14 I rr'. ..I r - r -8 r...,tra* m. ma.n+ .. n r n n  :.w*n 7.r -.,... .r --ern 
Mltl.... ms '.r,.llr"""I.~I I .*.I .I .* . ,C*..dI.,. 1 .I +I 4 

I. . ~ ~ . ~ t v - ~ - . . . ~ + . ~ . . - . * r . . . - . r r r +  .. r.. .,*.r!*v 1 1 ~ 1 t . ~ m m ~ ~ ~ b u  
* l m , * ~ m  % I & #  . l&UaI *om+. * ..-t 1 s .P' -.-*, .,.. i.L. --  ... . - m u +  ,* 





Overbrook Road at Montevatlo Road - Ripht Turn Lane Extension 

Materials / Quantity 
Description Estimates 
Undassified Excavation 50 
Borrow Excavation 10 
Removing existing curb and gutter 360 
Removing existing drivev/ay 60 
Rernovine existing sidewak 160 
Saw-cut existing pav~ment 350 
Wearing Surface 98 
Binder Layer 30 
Rase Layer 74 
Mil!ing (1.5") 1200 
Tack Coat 195 
24" Valley Gutter 265 
IS' Curb and Gutter 20 
Gutter to curb Transition 10 
Gutter Crosslng Orkcways GS 
Sidewalk 160 

Harrdkcap Ramp 1 
Driveway Concrete 30 

d Solid White  strip^ 455 
J~ashed White Stripe 110 
I ~ o u b l e  Yellow Stripe 80 
J~avement MarkingslStop bart2 Turn arrows) 100 
i ~ a i s e d  Pavement Markers 35 

Brick border 25 

Topsoil 25 
Sod 165 
Water Meter Reset 2 
Mantlole height adjustment 1 

Mailbox Reset 2 
Loop Wire 800 ' 

Loop Detector Lead-In-Cable 160 
Vehicle Loop Detector 2 
Traffic Signal Junction Box 1 
1" Non-Metallic Conduit 35 
Vehicular Signal Head, 12", 5 Section, Type 
LED 1 
Silt Fence 400 
Traffic Control Drums 20 
Construction Signs 96 
Mobilizatiori 1 

Engineering Controls 1 

Unit 
CY 
CY 
LF 
SY 
SY 
LF 

Ton 

Ton 
Ton 
SY 

Gal 

LF . 

LF 
LF 
LF 
SY 
€A 
SY 
LF 
LF 
LF 
SF 
E A 

LF 
CY 
SY 
€A 
E A 

E A 
LF 
LF 
E A 

€A 
LF 



NO'I'lC'E Oi' AI.ARAhlA Ih4h~IlliKA'f'ION I,A\L' C'OAIPI,fANCE: Rf ;QUIR13MIIpjIrS 
10 AI.1, CONIRACI'ORS O F  '1'1113 C'IT'F' 0 1 '  hlOlml'AIN BROOK, AI.ABAMA 
("Af,ARm4h.IA IMh~lICiRA'l'lOi\l: C'OX~IPl.IANC'1: CONJ'RACT") As u Contractor. as 
dcti~~cd in tlie Acl. to I'fII: C17-1' 01: hiOlJN1'AfN HROOK, Al.AR.4MA ("tllc City"). it 
is critical to your rulatint~sbip (ii~turc or coatitiuing) with thc City that J-ou comply with 
tlic Immigration Kcforn~ and C'onirol Act of 1886. tts nrncnded hy the Immigration Act of 
1990. and the f3caw11 - I lntnnicln hlahamu 'l aspagcr atid Clitizccn Protcclion Act. 
Accordingly, plmsc prtwidlr y i u ~ .  rlfndavit of Immigration Complioncc ttith nttnchcd 
E - Vcrify Mrmomndunl c~f ljnilurstanding. as rcqt~csictl in the attrrchud memorandum. 
I f  you do not hcficvc thcsc ohligntiiins i~pplp to you. plctlsc riatify tlic City inin~cdiatclj-. 
I3ffective Janunrj 1.201 9,. cvcry contract cniercd into hp tt~c C'i ty a contractor \\ill 
contait~ the following clm~se or one suhslanliall_v similar: .4lahan1a Imt~~igration I.ai\ 
Complianct: Conlrilct: C'ontractor agrees that it will fitlly comply with the lmrnigra~ion 
Reform nnd ('(~t~tml Act of 1986. ns uliisndcd h s  the Immigratioti Act of 1990. a~ld tllz 
Rcason - IIammon Alabama 'lnaspa!.cr and C'itizen llrotcction Act, which mclkcs it 
t~nlawiLI for an cinploycr in Alitba111il to knoninglj. hire or cnntit~uc to crploy at1 alien 
ivho is or lins bcca~nc unauthorized nitti rcspect to s\ic\~ enlploymcnt or to fail to camply 
trith thc I - 9 req~~i~vnicnts or faill; to usc II Vcrif). to vtrifj. the cligibilily to Itgall> 
nark in thc lfnitcd Statcs for rrtl of' its nett 11irt.s ~ ~ t l o  iirc ctnployed tu wok in tlic Stale 
[if Alaham:t \!Tithotit l in~i t i~~g tlic tbrcgoiag. Cbntrilctor sflall not knowingly employ. 
hire for cmploymcnt. or continuc to caploy at1 unnntllori/sd alica, atrd shill1 Iiiivc an 
ollicor rir otlier ttiilnagucinl omploycc NIIO is pcrsonallj- f:~n~iliar tvitti tlie C'ontractor's 
hiring practices to cxccutc an afIida\.it to this cffcct on  1111: form supplied b l  tllu 13oard 
and rcturn the same trr tIlc Cit?. C'oatruclor sl~nll nlso enroll in tllc I3 - \!crify Prijggram 
prior ta pcrlbrniing an! work, or continuing to pcrfi~r~i~ un! ongoing work. and shall 
rcn~oin cnrtd ltd thrtrughout tile cntirc. cc~ursc or  its pcrfbnnntlcc hrreundcr. and sl~all 
attach t its offida~ i t  the Ii . Vcrify IJrograni for I:mplo~~ment Vcriiication and 
Mcmoranditm OF I inilcrstiuiditlg and swll ollicr dr~curncne~tian H S  (lie Rnarci may rcquirc 
to callfirm Contractor's c~irollmcnt in tlic I ;  - Verifj 1)ropnnl. Contractor ngrccs not to 
kno~vinglp allow an) of its subcontractors. or any otbcr partj. \\it11 \1~ho111 it  has a 
contruck. lo cmploy in thc Statc of' Alahamn any illegal or undocumalted alictis to 
prfonn any work in n~nncctiotl nit11 tlre Pri~.icct. nnd shall include in all of ils contracts a 
prr~visiat~ s~thstnntiall~~ si tnilar t(1 this parngriph. If C'ontructor recei~ cs actual knowludgc 
i\f the unautharizcd st:it~\s of one of its emplojues in i l~c Slate uf  Alabmin. it will rerno\'e 
that ctnployce friim tlie proiect. jobsite or preniises of rhc City and sl~all comply wit11 the 
1mmiyntic)n Reform arad C~ntrc~I .4cl of 19XG. as tsn~ended by l l~e It~itniyration Act of 
1990, and d ~ e  l3cason - I Intunion Alahanu 'I'uspat-ur and C'itizen I)rntcctit~t~ Act. 
C'omractor sllall require tach oiSit.% suI~contr.acttrrs. or other parties tvitk jvhorn it has a 
contracl. lo act in a si~ililur fnshinn. Il'l'cintmctor \.iolnIcs any tcrnl of this pmvision, Illis 
Agrccmcnt will be subject to inimr.diatc tsrniinution ly tlic City. 1'0 t l ~ t  fullest cstent 
permitted 1)) Ian. C'onirzlclur shall dcfcnd. indcmnif~ nnd hold l~an~~ lcs s  the City front 
any and all fosscs, conseqt~cntinl di~mnges. cspunscs (including, but not liniitrd to. 
tttton~c~-s' rues). claitns. suits. liabiliiitrs. fines. pcnaltics. itnd any other rtists arising artt of' 
or in an}- flay related ta C'onlractor's litilurc 111 fi~lliIl it% obligations colrtaincd in this 

['rujcct hluniipcr; Ht,nilld Vaughn 205-801-3863; entail vuudm~r~~~ntnhro(~I ; .~ ,~~ 



paragraph. 7'0 thc extent thal there is no fbrnial written contract bet\!cen the C i t ~  and the 
Clontrnctnr (c.g.. wherc business is conducted by p t~xhas r  order), this document shall 
serve as the Alabati~u Ittitniyri~tion C'omplisncc Contract. Alabama lit~niigration 1,nw 
C'omplioncc Clantracl Notice Acknuiblcdgcd and Agrced by Contractor wllose nurne 
appears be 1%: z2 Q- 

Evans Dunn I Vice President I Dunn Construction Company, Inc. ---.- *,-- --.- --- --- --- 
i'rint Kamc~Ti tlc/C'otnp:~n~ 

1'lcn.s~ csccutc nnd rclurn ta 'J'flf.; C'I-1'Y 0 1 ;  hIO1 rN'I+4lK RKOOK. AIAHAMA \rnithin 
thc ncsi I I) days 

Al:l:II)AVIl' OF Al,AI3AMA 1Mh.iIUfbi'l'ION C1OM1'l.lAN(:f: f3Y A 
SUf3C'OSl+RAl'l+Oi '1 0 rZ 1'111.17'('IAI. SIII3I)I\'lSION OF 'T1.IF STA'I'E 01: 
A1,ABAMA ('1'0 hc conij~lctcd ns a condilion for the anard of'any Isub]contracl, 

granl. or inccntivc by tlie S I ~ I ~ L L  nf .A l~~h ; tm;~  uny political suhdit isiun thcreull or arlg 
statc - firndlrd et l t i t~ tn a business entity. TO BI' RETIJRNf'I) TO THE 

CON'I'IIAC' I'OK OK (;RAN'I'kI+. 01. I HI;. C'I'I'Y 01: MOINI'AIN BROOK. 
AIARAMA) C'it!' 01' Mountain f3roi1b. Alabunia PORh.1 FOR SECTIONS 9 (a) and 

(b) I3I.:ASON I IAAiklOS hl+ABAMtl ?')\);PAYER AND C'I'rIZEN 
IJRCI'I'I:CW1'IOX AC'T; ('Olll~ 0 1 . '  Rl.Al3hh.lA. SLC'I'IONS 31 - 13 - 9 {a) ruld (b) 

State oj' . ._4~abam_a_ . . . . . . . . . . . , - . - - --.- C*OLI!~~J L I ~ '  
Jefferson - --- . .. . . . . . . - . . . . - - - l3uforc mu. a notary pttblic, 

prsc~null) appcarcd ~v;ns.~unn , - -- -- ,-, _- (prin~ nnnit.) \\-l~o. bcing 
dull s\vom. saxs as FoIlowvs: As il cclnditirm filr the award oi'any [st~bjcontract. 

Isuh]gram. or inccntivc 13 tllc Stutc trf Alabama. any pnliticnl subdivision ~fierccrf: or 
7 - -  
ui! slaw - ru~idcd cntitj t r r  a busiucss n ~ t i t y  or employer that c~nploys one or nioru 

cmplqccs. I hcrch_v urlest that in my cupacitj os 
Vice President -- --- .-- .------A ---- ---- [state position) for 

Dunn Consttuction-Cgq~y, Inc . - . . . - --- -- - - - -- (state business 
cntity~c~i~ploy~'rlcan~rilc~i,r nanre) ttwl said business rntityieetnplaycrl[sub]conmctor 

sliull not knoitingly cmpluy, llirc fix anploymcnt, or continuc to employ a11 
u~rautlioetizcd alicn. 1 A~n l~c r  ullest tlritl strid husinrss ciztity'c.mploycr~contrnctor is 

r t~ro l l~r l  in the Ii Vcr i f~  program. 



(AI-I-ACI I n COPY 01: \;orlit o~c;nNIzA.rnro~os E - VERII"L' 
MIiMORAN1)llh.l (11' [ .  NlIISKS'I'ANIIINC; 'R) IIOC'UMEK'I' TIiAT TI 11: 

BtJSlNliSS 1~Nl'll'YfliMPI.OJ'KK~ [SljH] C'ONI~RACI'OR IS ENRUI.I.lIJ1 IK 
-I'lIF, E - VI:RII:Y IIROGl<Ah.l.) I furtlicr nttcst thnt all sub - contractors in m y  
cmploymcnt arc dulz enrtillrd in tilt I: - Verify pragrnm and upon rcqucsr can 

p ucc: illr appropriale forms verifying such action. 8- -- -- Signature of Affiant (an Officer or 
&trof[S~~b]~of~tractor)-,- - ,  ~ u n n  'Construction Company, tnc. 

I: - Vcrify IJser Idcntificniion Nn~nber S ~ v o m  to and si~hscribed bcforc me this 
thc ai'fiant is known (or nladc 

shtl claims to hc. 
Signnturc and Scid oCNottlrj- 

[Seal] 



!Ilk9 ~ c r m  

Taxpayer identification Number (TIN) 
Enter your TIN In the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given an line 1 to avoid 1 Sacla1 sscurity number I 
backup w~thholding For individuals, thls is generally your social security number (SSN). Horvever, fore 
resident alien sole proprietor, o r  dlsregarded entity, see It-e Part I instructions on page 3. For other 
enrltirs, It Is your omplayer Identification number (€IN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 

0 
ar 

TIN on ~aae-3. ar 

Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 

;3Cnakhiledorll;id.sdlicdlon:ng se"l~o" bo&' 

t. The number shown on this torm is my correct tarpa$er identificati~n number (or I am waiting for a number to be Issued to me); end 

requester. DO not 
send to the IRS. 

(Rev. December 201 4) 
bepartmeat of the ~ i e a w y  
In!mcd Revenua Ssnlce 

4 Enempllans (codes apply o ~ l  to 

. - -. 

2. 1 am not subject to  backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholdlng, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revon~e 
Service (IRS) that I am subject to  backup withholding as a result of a fellure to report oil interesl or divldcnds, or (c) the IAS has notiired me that I am 
no longer subiect to backup withholding; end 

- 7 i ~ a ~ e  (asahovm on your h&me tax-tiurn). Name is rcqded on IMs lino; rlo ncl tane thls I ne Wz* 

Identification Number and Certification 

cerlain entitles, cot indhtduals, see 
~s~rJctioru an page 3) 
Exempt payee code ti any) 

I: Inn mPOding 
. code (If any) 

~ r t o r l r u r n r r 1 1 ~ . ~ y k . d ~ 1 ~ u s )  

* j a Ind;l..euaVsale pmpAelw or C Cor~ora!Im on S Corpora!bn 5 Partnership 0 TrurJestale 
singbmenber U C  

' L.ml!ad lfabrlty company. Enlor lM la classfi&on [C=C corpnDn. 8 4  ccrporalan, P=pWmsNfl 
I 

Note. If the account Is In more than one name, see the Instructions for llne 1 and the chart on page 4 for 
guidelines on whose number to enter. 

3. t am a U.S. citizen or other U.S, person (defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code@) entered an thls brm (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting Is correct. 

Certiifcatlon lnstructlons. You must cross out item 2 above # you have been notifled by the IRS that you are currently skbject l o  backup withhotding 
because you have failed to  report all rnterest and dividends on your tax ratcm. Far real estale transactions, Item 2 does not apply. Far mortgage 
interest paid, acqu~sition or abandonment of secured property, cencellalion of debt, contflbutions to an individurf retirement arrangement (IRA), end 
generally. payments olhor than lntwest and dividends, you are not requlred to sign the certification, but you must provlde your correct TIN. See the 
instructions on page 3. 
-. 

= 8 

; 

EmpBQYer idenimcation number 

-i[q - ~ o i o 1 6 1 i ! 1 8 \ ~ 4 1 0 ~  
! 8 

Sign sgnetws of 
Here 1 ~ .~ .pemonb  fi %&U, CFQ Date + 3 115 

Nola. For a dnglcr-member U C  that k disregarded, da not check LC; chck  the approplate box In the llne above for 
! the tax classlrcalkn of the sagle-mom& owner. 

. [7 Other (see insWbns)b , --.,-.-- 
E : u 
g ' 
2 ; 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

General Instructions F m  1096 (home mortgage Inleresl). 1096-E (stvlenl ban lateresq. 1048-T 
[tuitkxr) 

Sec!ion references are tc the IclemR Revenue Code unless otherwise mted. F m  1099-C (cancsled dcbt) 
Future dsvdopments. Infomatbn about devebpmens alfectilg Form W-9 (sXh . F- 3099.~ (acquhltion or aban&nment of s e m  pmpcrty) an fegi.4a:'on eraeted altn we release Itl Is at wwr~.lrs.gcv!M. 

Use F m  W-9 only H yau are a U.S. person (Including a rcsldcnt aPcnl to 
Purpose of Form p l d e  ywr m e e t  TIN. 

An Individual a entlly (Form W-9 mquostw) who Is required to fib an lnlonna!lon M you do not return Am W-9 to the reqmter with a nN, you right be sutlect 
relum with the IRS must obtel? your correct taxpayer l&ntifiallcn number (TIN) lo bskup wllhhokling, See VYhat b bachp wl?hblding? on page 2. 
nh'ich may Sa your social ~ecui ly  number (SSN). Individual taxwver idcnUfation Bv slanlna the lied-ou! farm. mu: 

5 Address (W~rnber, street. and apt, or suke na.) 

3905 Messer Airport Hwy 
-.>, 

"6 CJ!~, steta. and Zip c& 

Birmingham, - AL 35222 

a " "  ..-- 
nurnb+r(#lN). &option tslcpayglden!iflcailon riumber (ATIN), br bmplcpr 
ldenttficatlon wmber (EINJ, lo report on an Information return the amour.! paki to 1. Certify the! the TIN yau ere glvyrg Is comc! (or you are walling fw a n-r 
you. or cVIcr amount repoctable on an informalion relm. Exam~lss of !nlormat*n lo h9 Issued)' 
-elms Indude, but are rnl limited to. the followl-g: 2 Cer~~fy that you ara not mubJect to backup vrlthholdhg, w 

- 
Rqwstefs name md address (optionel) 

-- 

Form 1099-NT pntorest eanod or pa'd) 3. Cbim exemptkc born backup withholding I1 y w  era a US, exempt paycs. :! 
Form t093.0.V (dividends, Includhg trolc horn stocks or mutual funds) eppZcab'e, you am also millylng tlmt as a U S. person, yow atlmbkt ahra  a! 

ony partnership Income from a U.S. trade or busheas k m t  6ub;ect to the 
Form 1093-hl!SC (valous types of income. phe3, avrards, or gross proceeds) w:thholdlng taw on forelgn partners share of eYec!ively cunaected Ireorno. ard 

7 List account m h b 4 s )  here (oplionnr) 
- 

Form 1099-8 (s!xk or mutual fund sales and certaln other tnnut lbns by 4. Cert'fy that FATCA mde(s) entered on thfs Iwm (n any) indlcat-ng t*al you are 
bmiers) exempt from U!e FATCA reporling. b w m t .  See What b FATCAreporfing7 on 

Fwrn 1093-5 lpmcceds Imm real estate traruact?ons) page 2 lor futther Inlornatio~.. 

* Form 1098-K :memar.t card and lhfrd party network transactions# 

Cat. Na.lM31X F m  W-9 !Rev. 12.2314i 





THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS 

AIA Document A310 
Bid Bond 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT WE Dunn Construction Companv. Inc. 

P.O. Box 11967. Birminsham, AL 35202 

as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and Federal Insurance Company 

15 Mountain View Road. Warren. NJ 07059 

a corporation duly organized under the laws of the Stale of IN 

as Surety, herelnafler celled !he Surety, are held and firmly bound unto City of Mountain Brook 

56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

as Obligee, hereinafler called the Obligee, In the sum of Ten Thousand Dollars and 0011 00 

Dollars ($ $10,000 I n  
for the paymenl of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal and the said Surety, bind ourselves, our heirs, 
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, Jolntly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has submitled a bid for Right Turn Lane Extension on Overbrook Rd. at Montevallo Rd., 

Project No. MI 07-2016 

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shall accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a Contract with 
the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such bid, and give such bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or 
Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the failhful performance of such Contract and for the prompt 
payment of labor and materials furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter 
such Contract and give such bond or bonds, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the 
penalty hereof between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good fakh 
contract with another party lo perform the Work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be null and void, othewise 
to remain in full farce and effect. 

Signed and sealed this 5th day of May l 201 6 

Dunn Construction Cornpany,,lnc. 
[Seer) 

dP 
me1 

Federal Insurance Company - 
fSu@QJ (Seal) 

Renee Ellis (Wftness) 

- (Tibe1 

AL4 DOCU31EhT A310 BID BOYD r A U  FEBRUARY 1970 ED. THE; AMERICAN 
LiSTl'rliTE OF ARL'IIITLCTS, 1735 K.Y. AVE, K.W.. WASIIISCTO?I, D.C. 2W06 



' E ""bb POWER OF Vigilant Insurance Company 15 Mountain View Road 
Federal Insurance Company Attn: Surety Department 

Surety Warren, NJ 07059 - Pacific Zndemnity Company 

Know All by These Presents, That FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, an Indiana corporation, VIGILANT lNSURANCE 
COMPANY, a New York corporation, and PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY, a Wisconsin corporation, do each hereby constitute and 
appoint David J. Durden, Renee Ellis, Thomas J. Gentlle, Billie Jo Sanders and Paul B. Scott, Ir. of Montgomery, Alabama - 

each as their true and h f u l  A b m ~ -  in- Fad lo  execute under such designah in their names and to a f r ~  their mrponte seals lo and daket (or and on thdr behalf as surely 
thereon or otherwise, bonds and undertakings and other wtitings obligatory In the natun thereof (olher than baH bonds) glven or e*caned in the course of business, and any 
Instrumenis amendlng or altering the same, and ansents to the modificallon w a l m t h n  of any Instrument refemd to In said trands or ob!igatia~. 
In Wltness Whereof, said FEDERAL INSURANCE COhlP@Y, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, end PACIFIC fNDEMNrrY COMPANY have each 
these presents end affwed tneirmrperateseais on thls 3 day of October, 2015. 

Dawn M. Ch-. Assitbnt Seuetary 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
9$. 

County of Soinersec 

On this I 3G day of October, 201 5 before me, a Notary Publlc d New Jersey, w-ay came Dawn M. Chkms. lo me k n m  b be Assistant Secretary of FEDERAL 
INSURANCE COMPANY. VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNlTY COMPANY. the mpanies  whTch executed the foregoing PowerofAttmey, and the 
raid D m  M. Chloms, being by me duly m, dld depose and say thal she is Aulstant Smtary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY. VlGlLANT INSURANCE 
COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNIM COMPANY and k n m  the corporate seals thereof, that the seats aIli*ed to the foregoing Pmer ot Attorney are such arrporate seals 
and were thereto affixed by aulhority of the By- Laws of sald Cwnpanies, and lhal she signed said Power of Attorney as Assistant Secnlary of said Companies by like a u t h m  
and that she Is acgwinted wiyl David 8. Nods, Jc, and knows him to be Vice President of said Ccmpnles; and that the s gnalure of Davld B Nom, Jt., subsaibed to said 
Power 01 Attorney is In the genuine hanchwiting of David 0 Narris, Jr.. and was thereto subscribed by authority of sald By- m z d  In depontnls presance, 

/' 

Notarial Seal 

KATHERINE J. M E W  
NOTARY PUBLtC OF NEW JERSN 

No. 2316685 
Comrnlsslon Explreri ~ u t y  16,2019 

CERTIFICATION 
Exlrad from the By- Lam of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY. VlOlLANTlNSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC INDEMNrrY COMPANY: 

'Except as othenvlre prwided h these By-Laws or by law or as otherwise directed by the Board of blrectors, the Plesldent or any Vice Pres.khl shaU be authorized to 
execute and deliver, in the name and on behan of the Corporation, all agreements. bonds, conhack, deeds, morlgages, and olher instrvmenls, either lor the Corporation's 
arm account or in a fiduciary or othereapacay, and the Seal of the Corporalon. If appropriate, shall be am& Lhereto by any of such affcers or Re Secretary DI an &'stant 
Swetary. The Board dOirectars, the President or any Vice President desbnatpd by the Board of Directws may authorize any other otneer, empleyee or agent to execute 
and deliver. In the name and on behalf of the Corporation, agreemenls, bands, contracts. deeds, rnor~gages and oYler Instruments, either for me Corporation's own 
a m n t  or In a fidudav w other capadty, a?d, If appropriate, to am: Ule stal of the Cotparatien thereto. The granl of such autho-'ty by t.ie Board or any s;.3 off= may 
be genwal or confined to specific instances. 

I. Dawn M Chlcros, Asslrtant Secretary of FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY, VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY, and PACIFIC IOEMNTTY COMPANY (lhe 'Ccmpanks') 
do heteby certify that 

(i) fhe foregoing exIrad of the By- LM oflhe Companies is INe and aanect, 
O b e  Companies are duty r i n s e d  and authortred lo tnnSaCl surety business tn ail 50 dthe United Slates of Amedca and the District of ColumUa and are 

authorled by the U.S. Treauay Department: further, Fedenl and Viglbnt are licensed in the U.S. Virgin Islands, avd Federal k jleensed in Guam. Puerta 
Rico, and each of the Prwinoes 01 C a ~ d a  excepl Pdnce Edward Wand; and 

(iiij the -ng Power of Atlmey Is true, aKlect and in full force and e f k t .  

Owen under my hand and seals 01 sald Companies %I Wamn. NJ this my 5, 201 6 

Dawn M. Chloms. AssisIant Secretary 

IN THE RrEHT YOU WSH T 0 NOTIFYUS OF A CWM. VERIFY THE AUTHEMlClTY OF THIS BOND OR NOTIFY US OF ANY OTHER MAllER P L W E  CONTACT US AT AWRESS 

I LISTED ABOVE. OR BY  me^ NO81 003- 3493 FBI tW8I Q 3656 small: ~ w w ~ m m  .I 

Fmn 1510. casa- u GEN CONSENT (rav, 07-15] 



Company ID Numkr: 245291 

THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

ARTICLE 1 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

This Mernorandu~n of Understanding (MOU) sets forth the points of agreement between ihe 
Deparln~ent of Horneland Security (DHS) and Durln Construction Companv lnc. (Employer) 
regarding the Employer's paltlcipatlon in tho Employment Eligibilily Verification Program (E- 
Verify). This MOU explains certain features of the E-Verify program and enu~nerates specific 
responsibflities of Dl-is, the Social Security Adlninistration (SSA), and the Employer. E-Verify is 
a program that electronically cdnfirms an employee's eligibilily to work in the United States alter 
coniplelion of the Employment Eligibility Verification Form (Form 1-91, For covered governlnerlt 
contractors, E-Verify is used to verify the c~nployrrtent eligibility of all rrewly hired employees and 
all existing employees assigned to Federal contracts. 

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Sublitle A, of (he Illegal Immigration 
Reform and lrntnigranl Responsibilily Act of 1996 (IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-200, 110 Stat. 3009, as 
amended (8 U.S,C. 5 1324a note). Authority for use of the E-Veriiy program by Federal 
contractors and subcontractors covered by the terms of Subpart 22.18, "Employment Eligibility 
Verification", of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) (hereinafter referred to in this MOU as 
a "Federal contr8ctor") to verify the employment eligibility of certain employees working on 
Federal contracts is also found in Subpart 22.18 and in Executive Order 12909, as amended. 

ARTICLE I1 

FUNCTIONS TO BE PERFORMED 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA 

1. SSA agrees to provide the Employer with available information that allows the Employer 
to confirm tho accuracy of Social Security Numbers provided by all employees verified under 
this MOU and the employment autl~orization of U.S. citizens. 

2. SSA agrees to provide to the Employer appropriate assistance with operational 
problems that may arise during the Employer's participation in the E-Verify program. SSA 
agrees to provide the Employer with names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of SSA 
representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. SSA agrees 10 safeguard the information provided by the Employer through the €-Verify 
program procedures, and to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to 
individuals responsible for the verificalin of Social Sealri\y Numbers and for evaluation of \he 
E-Verify program or such other persons or entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed 
by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. Zj 552a), the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)), and SSA 
regulations (20 CFR Part 401). 



Company ID Number: 245291 

4. SSA agrees to provide a means of automated verification that is designed (in 
cot~junclion with DHS's autolnaled system if necessary) to provide confirmation or tentaflve 
nonconfirmation of U.S. citkens' employment eligibility within 3 Federal Government work days 
of the initial inquiry. 

5. SSA agrees to provide a means of secondary verificatlon (inclalding updating SSA 
records as may be necessary) for ernptnyees who contest SSA tentative tionconfirmations that 
is designed to provide final confirmation or nonconfirmation of U.S. citizens' employment 
eligibility and accuracy of SSA records for both citlzens and aliens vrithln 10 Federal 
Governrner~t work days of the date of referral to SSA, un:ess SSA detennines that more than 10 
days lnny be necessary. In such eases, SSA will provide additional verificatio~i instructions. 

8. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHS 

1. After SSA verifies the accuracy of SSA records for aliens through E-Verify, DHS agrees 
to provide the Employer access to selected data from DHS's database to enable the Employer 
to conduct, to the extent auU'torizod by this 1ulOU: 

Autolnaled verificatior~ clbecks olr alien onlployees by electrotlic means, and 

Photo verification cl!ecks (when available) on employees. 

2. DHS agrees to #provide to the En~ployar appropriate assistance with operations! 
problems that may arise during tho Employer's parlicipation in tho E-Verify program. DFlS 
agrees to provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of DHS 
represenlalives lo be co~itacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. OHS agrees to provide to the Employer a manual (the E-Verify User Manual) containing 
i~istructio~~s on E-Verify policies, procedures and requirements for bolh SSA and DHS, including 
reslrictiotis on tho use of E-Verify. DHS agrees to provide training materials on E-Verify. 

4. DHS agrees to provide lo the Employer a nollce, which Indicates the E~nployer's 
participation in the E-Verify program. DHS. also agrees to provide to the Employer anti* 
discrimination notices issued by Ihe Office of Specrat Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfafr 
Employment Practices (OSC), Civil Rights Division, U.S. Depatlrnent of Justice. . 

5. OMS agrees lo issue the Employer a user identification number and password that 
permits Ihe Employer lo verify information provided by alien employees with DHS's database. 

6. DHS agrees to safeguard the information provided to OHS by the Employer, and to limit 
access to such ir~formalion to individuals responsible for the verification of alien employment 
eligibilily and for evaluation of the E-Verify program, or to such other persons or entities as rnay 
be aulhorized by applicable law. Inforlnation will be used only to verify the accuracy of Social 
Securify Numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the Immigration and Nationality Act 
(INA) and Federal criminal laws, and to administer Federal contracting requirements. 

7. DHS agrees to provide a means of automated verificatio~i that b designed (in 
conjunction with SSA verificatlon procedures) to provide confirmation or tentative - 



Company ID Number: 245291 

nonconfirmation of empioyees' employment ;liyibility within 3 Federal Government work days of 
the initial Inquiry. 

8. DliS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (including updating DHS 
records as may be necessary) lor en~ployees who contest DHS tentative nonconfirmalions and 
photo non-lnalch tentative nonconfirmations that is des'yned to provide final confir~nalion or 
nonconfirmation of the employees' employment eligibilily vrithin 10 Federal Government work 
days of (he date of referral to DHS, unless DHS determines that more than 10 days may be 
necessary. In such cases. DHS will provide add~tional verification hstruclions. 

C. RESPONSlBlLlTlES OF THE EMPLOYER 

1. The Employer agrees to display the notices st~pplied by DHS in a prominent place that is 
clearly visible to prospective cr~lployees and all employees who are to he verified through [tie 
system. 

2. 'The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names. titles, addresses, and 
telephone numbers of the Employer representatives to be contacted regarding E-Verify. 

3. The Employer agrees to become fa~iiiliar with and comply will1 the most recent version 
of tlie E-Verify User Manual. 

4.  The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative vrho will perform e~ploymenl 
verification rlueries will colnplate the E-Verify Tutorial before that individual initiates any 
queries. 

A. The Employer agrees that all Employer representatives will take tho refresher 
tulorials initiated by the E-Verify program as a condition of cor~tinuecl use of E- 
Verify, including any tutorials for Federal contractors if the Employer is a Federal 
contractor. 

8. Failure to complete a refresher tutorial will prevent Ihe Employer from conti~iued 
use of the program. 

5. The Employer agrees to colnpfy with current Form 1-9 procedures, with two exceptions; 

* . I f  an employee presents a "List B" identity doctrment, the Employer agrees to only 
accept "List B" documents that contairi a photo. (List B doc~rrnenls identified in 8 C.F.A. 

274a.2(b)(l)(B)) can be presented dllri11~ !he Form 1-9 process to establish identity.) If 
an employee objects to tho photo requirement for religious reasons, the Employer 
should contact E-Verify at 888-464-421 0. 

If an employee presents a DHS Form 1-551 (Permanent Resident Card) or Form 1-766 
(Employment Authorization Document) to complete the Form 1-9, the Employer agrees lo 
make a photocopy of the docu~ne~~ t  and to retain the pholocopy with the employee's 
Form 1-0. Tho en~ployer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS 
with its review of photo non-matches tilot are contested by employees. Note that 
employees retain the right to present any Lisl A, or L id B and List C, documolllalio~~ ID 
complete the Form 1-9. DHS may in the future designate other documents that activate 
the photo screening too!. 



Company ID Number: 245291 

6. The Employer ilnderstands that participation in E-Verify does not exempt the Employer 
from the responsibility to complete, retain, and make available for Inspection Forms 1-9 that 
relate to its employees, or from other requirements of applicable regulatioris or laws, including 
the obligation to comply with the antidiscrim1nat;on requirements of section 2748 of the INA with 
respect to Form 1-9 procedures, except for the following modified requirements applicable by 
reason of the Employer's pa~ticlpation in E-Verify: (1) identity documents rnust have photos, as 
described In paragraph 5 above; (2) a rebuttable presumption is established that the Employer 
has not violated section 274A(a)(l)(A) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect 
to the hiring of any individual if it obtains confirmation of the ident#y and employment eligibility of 
the individual in cor~~pliance viltli t h e  terms and conditions of E-Verify; (3) the Employer must 
notify Off S if i t  continues to eniploy any etnployee after receiving a final nonconfirmation, and is 
subject to a civil money penalty between $550 and $1.100 for each failure lo notify DHS of 
continued employment following a final nonconfirmation; (4) the Employer is subject to a 
rebutlable presumption that i t  has knowingly employed an unauthorized alien in violation of 
section 274A(a)(l)(A) i f  the Bnployor continues to employ an employee after receiving a final 
nonconfirmation; and (5) no persot1 or onl'ty participating in E-Verify is civilly or criminally liable 
under any taw for any action taken In geod faith based on intormatian provided through the 
confirmation system. DHS reserves the right to conduct Forrn 1-9 compliar~ce inspections during 
the coirrse of €-Verily, as well as to conduct any other enforcement activity authorized by law. 

7. The E~nployer agrees lo inifiate E-Verily verification procedtrres for new elnployees 
within 3 Employer business days aftor each e~nployee has been hired (but after both sections I 
and 2 of tho Form 1-9 have been completed), and to cornplete as many (hut only as many) steps 
of the €-Verify process as are necessaly according to tlie E-Verify User Manual. The Employer 
is prohibited from initiating verificathn procedures before the employee has beer1 hired and the 
Form 1-9 completed. If the arltomated system to be queried is temporarily unavailable, the Bday 
t h e  period is extended uritil it is again operational in order to acco~nniodate the Employer's 
attempting, in good faith, lo make inquiries during the period of unavailability. In all cases, the 
Employer must use the SSA veriftcatior~ procedr~res firsf, and use DHS verificatior~ procedures 
and pholo screening tool only after the SSA verification response has been given. Employers 
may initiate verification by notating the Form 1-9 in circunistances where the employee has 
applied for a Social Security Number (SSN) from the SSA and is waiting to receive the SSN. 
provided that the Employer performs an E-Verify employn~ant verification query using the 
eniployee's SSN as soon as the SSN becomes available, 

0. The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify procedures far pre-employment screening of 
job applicants, in support of any unlawful employment practice, or for any other use not 
authorized by this MOU. Employers must use €-Verify for all new employees, unless an 
Employer is a Fedora' contractor that qualifies for the exceptions described in Article I1.D.l.c. 
Except as provided In Article 1l.D. the Employer wil; not verify selectively and will not verify 
employees liired before the effective date of this MOU. The Eniployer understands that if the 
Employer uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as authorized by this MOU, the 
Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its access to SSA and 
DHS information pursuant to this MOU. 

9. The Employer agrees lo follow appropriate procedures (see Article Ill. below) regarding 
tentative nonconfrmations, including notifying employees of tho finding, providi~lg wrilten 
referral inslructions to employees, allowing employees to contest the findit~g, and not taking 



Company ID Number: 245291 

adverse action againsf employees i f  they choose to contest tlie bnding. Furtlier, when 
employees contest a tentative nonconfirmalion based uporl a photo non-match, Ihe Employer is 
required to take affirmative steps (see Article 111.8. below) to contacl DHS with information 
necessary lo resolve the cl~allenge. 

10. The Employer agrees not to take any adverse aclion against an employee based upon 
the employee's perceived employment eligibility status while SSA or DHS is processing the 
verificatyon request unless lhe Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. 9 274a.l(l)) 
that the employee is not work authorized. The Employer understands thal an initial inab~lily of 
the SSA or DHS automated verification system to verify work authorizelion, a tentative 
nonconfirmation, a case in continuance (indicaling tho need for additional time for the 
government to resolvc a case), or the finding of a photo lion-match, does not establish, and 
should not be interpreted as evidence, that Ihe employee is no! work authorized. In any of the 
cases listed above, tlie employee must be provided a full and fair opportr~nity to contest the 
finding, and if lie or slie does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse 
empfoynietil consequences based upon the employee's perceived ernp!oyment eligibility status 
(including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring 
an employee to work in poorer conrlitions, refusQng to assign the en~ployoe to a Federal contract 
or other assignment, or olfrenvise subjecting an employee to any assumption that he or she is 
unauthorized to work) ilntil and unless secondary verification by SSA or Dl-IS has been 
completed and a final nonconfrmation has been issued. If the employee does not choose lo 
conlest a tentative nonconfir~nalion or a photo lion-match or if a secondary verification is 
completed and a final nonconlirmalion is issued, then the Employer can find the etnployee is not 
work authorized and terminate file eniployee's efnploymont. Employers or eniployees wilt) 
questions about a final noncor~lirrnalion may call E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218 or OSC al 1-800- 
255-81 55 OF 1-800-237-25l5 (TDD). 

1 Tlie Employer agrees lo comply with Titte Vtl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 
2748 of the INA by not discr1rn:nating unlawfully against any iridividual in hiring, firing, or 
recruit~nenl or referral practices because of liis or her national origin or, in the case of a 
protected individual as defined in secVon 274B(a)(3) of the INA, because of his or her 
citizenship status, The Employer understands that such illegal practices can include selective 
ver'ification or use of E-Verify except as provided i r ~  par1 D below, or discharging or refusing to 
hire employees because Uley appear or sound "foreign* or have received tentative 
nonconfirtnations. The Employer further understands that any violation of the unfair 
immigration-related employment practices provisions in section 2748 of the INA could subject 
the Employer to civil penalties, back pay awards, and other sanctions, end violations of Title VII 
could subject (lie Employer to back pay awards, compensatory and punitive damages. 
Violations of either section 2748 of the INA or Title VI1 may also lead Lo the terminalio~l or ils 
participation in E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the anti-discrimination 
provision, it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD). 

12. The Employer agrees lo record the case verification number on the employee's Form 1-9 
or to print the screen containing Ihe case verification number and attacli i t  to the employee's 
Form 1-9. 

13. Tlie Employer agrees that it will use the information it receives from SSA or UHS 
pursuant to E-Verify and this MOU only to confirm the employment eligibility of employees as 



!I..'$ ,:> -'.' 'I. :ik#i;, >@$X3. 
\ 5,)Qpl p 

.,I>' 

Conipany ID Number: 245291 

authorized by this MOU. The Employer agrees that i t  will safeguard this information, and means 
of access to It (such as PINS and passwords) to ensure that it is not used for any other purpose 
and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that it is not disseminated to 
any person other than employees of tlie Employer who are autl~orized to perforln Ihe 
Employer's responsibilities under this MOU, except for sucli dissatnination as may be 
autliorized in advance by SSA or DHS for legititrlate purposes. 

14. The Employer acknowfedges that the information whjcli il receives from SSA is 
governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. 5 552a(i)(l) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 
U.S.C. 1306(a)), and Ihal any person who obtains lhis information under false pretenses or uses 
it for any pitrpose other than as provided for in this MOU rnay be subject to criminal penalties. 

15. The Employer agrees to cooperate with DHS and SSA in their comp!tance monitoring 
and evaluation of E-Verify, including by permilting DHS a ~ ~ d  SSA, upon reasonable nollce, to 
review Forms 1-9 arid other etnployment records and lo interview if and its employees regarding 
tho Employer's use of E-Verify, and to respond in a timely and accurate manner to DHS 
requests for information relathy to ilieir participatio~i in E-Verify. 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS 

1. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor subject lo the 
employment verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR it must verify the olnploymerit 
eligibility of any "employee assigned to tho contract" (as defined in FAR 22.1801) in addition to 
vorifying the ernploy~nent eligibility of ail other employees roquired to be verified under ihe FAR. 
Once an employee has been verified thlaugli E-Verllfy by the Employer, the Employer may not 
reverify the employee through E-Verify. 

a. Federal contractors no1 enrolled at Ihe lime of contract award: An Employer thal 
is not enrollcd in €-Verily as a Federal contractor at the time of a contract award musl enroll as 
a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of contract award and, 
within 90 days of enrollmenl, begin lo use E-Verify to initiate veriljcatioti of etnployrnent eligibility 
of new hires of tlie Employer who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to 
the contract. Once the Employer begiris verifying new hires, such verlfication of new hires must 
be initiated within 3 business days after the date of hire. Once enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal 
contractor, the Employer must inittate verificat'on of employees assigned to the contract withln 
90 calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an employee's assigliment to 
the contract, whichever date Is later. 

b. Federal conlractors already enrolled at the time of a contract award: Employers 
e~lrollcd in E-Verily as a Federal contractor for 90 days of more at the time of a contract award 
must use E-Verify to initiale verification of etnployrnent e!Igibility lor new hires of the Employer 
who are vrorking in the Unjted States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within 3 business 
days after tho date of hire. If (he Employer is enrolled in E-Verlfy as a Federal contractor for 90 
calendar days or less at the titne of contract award, tho Employer musl, within 90 days of 
enrollment, begin to use E-Verify to initiate verification of new hires of Ihe contractor who are 
working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new 
hires mtrsl be initiated within 3 business days after the date of hire. An Employer enrolled as a 
Federal contractor in E-Verify must iniliate verification of each employee assigned to the 



Company ID Nutnber: 245291 

conlract within 90 calendar days after date of contract award of within 30 days after assignment 
to the conlract, whichever is later. 

c. Institutions of higher educalion, State, local and tribal governments and surelies: 
Federal contractors thal are institutions of higher educafon (as defined at 20 U.S.C. IOOIfa)), 
Stale or ,local governments, governments of Federally recognized Indian Iribes, or surelies 
performing under a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency pursuant to a 
performance bond may choose to only verify new and existing employees assigned to tho 
Federal contract. Such Federal contractors may, however, e:ed to verily all new hires, andlor 
all existitrg employees hired after November 6, 1966. The provisions of Article 11.0, paragrapt~s 
1.a and 1 .b of this MOU providing timeframes for initiating employment verificatlor~ of employees 
assigned to a co~itract apply to such institiitions of higher educatiw, State, local and tribal 
governments, and sureties. 

d. Verification o l  all eniployees: Upori enrollment, En~ployers who are Federal 
contractors may elect to verify etnployrnent eligibility of all existing employees working in the 
United States tbtho were hired afier November 6, 1906, instead of verifying only those 
ernployees assigned to a covered Federal conlracl. After enrollment, Employers must elect lo 
do so only in tho manner deslgnated by DHS and initiate E-Verify verification of all exisling 
employees within 180 days after the election. 

e. For111 1-9 procodurcs for I=etleral contractors: The Eniployer tnay use a 
previously completecl Form 1.4 as the basis for iiiitiating E-Verify verification of an employee 
assignod to o conlract as long as that Form 1-9 is complete (including Ihe SSN), complies w:lh 
Arlicle ll.C.5, the e~nployee's work authorization has not expired, and the Employer has 
reviewed the informalion reflected in the Form 1-9 either in person or in communications with the 
employee to ensure that the employee's stated basis in section I of the Form 1-9 for work 
authorization has no1 changed (including, but not litnited to, a lawful permanent resident alien 
having become a naturalized U.S. citizen). I f  the Employer is unable to determine that the Form 
1-9 complies wilh Article H.C.5, if the employee's basis for work authorization as attested in 
section 1 has oxpted or changed, or if tile Form 1-9 contains no SSN or is olherwise incomplete, 
the Employer shall complete a new 1-9 consistent wilh Article ll.C.5, or update the previous 1-9 
to provide the necessary information. If sectiori 1 of the Form 1-9 is otherwise valid and up-to- 
date and the form otherwise complies with Article ll.C.5, bul reflects documentation (such as a 
V.S. passport or Form 1-551) that expired subsequent to completion of the Form 1-9, the 
Employer shall not require the production of additlonal documentation, or use the photo 
screening tool described in Art:cle II.C.5, subject to any additional or superseding instructions 
that may be provided on this subject in the E-Verify User Manual. Nothing in this section shall 
be construed to require a second verification using €-Verily of any assigned employee who has 
previously been verif~ed as a newly hired employee under this MOU, or to authorize verification 
of any existing employee by any Employer thal is not a Federal contractor, 

2. The Employer understands that If it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU 
is a performance requirement under the terms of the Federal contract or subcontract, and the 
Employer cansenls to the release of information relaling to compliance with its verificatioii 
responsibilities under this MOW to contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the 
Employer's compliance with Federal contracling requirements. 



Company ID Number: 245291 

ARTICLE Ill 

REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO SSA AND DHS 

A. REFERRAL TO SSA 

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer r~iust 
print the tentative nonconfirrnation notice as direcled by the automaled system and provide It to 
tho employee so that ihe employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

2. The Employer will refer e~nployoes lo SSA field offices only as directed by the 
aulomated syslern based on a tentative nonconfirmation, and only after the Employer records 
the case verification number, reviews the input to detect any lral~saction errors, and determines 
that the employee cotitests the tentative nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social 
Security Number to SSA for verification again if this review indicates a need to do so. The 
Employer will determine whether the employee contests Ihe tanlative nonconfir~nation as soon 
as possible after the Employer receives it. 

3. If the employee contests an SSA tentative nonconfirmalioti, the Employer will provide 
the employee with a system-generated referral letlor and instruct Ill@ employee to v~sit at) SSA 
office yfilhip 8 Federal Government work days. SSA will electronically transmit the result of tho 
referral lo the E~nployer will~in 10 Federal Govcrnrnerit work days of the referral unless it 
determines that more Ihan 10 days is necessary. The Elnployer agrees to check the E+Verify 
syslern regularly for case updates. 

4. The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social 
Security Number database (the Nurnident) or other written verifcation of the Social Security 
Number from the SSA. 

6. REFERRAL TO DHS 

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmatiori issued by DHS, the Employer rnust 
print the tentat~ve nonco~ifirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to 
the elnployee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

2. If the Employer finds a photo non-match for an employee who provides a docurnent iar 
which the automated systeln has transmitted a pholo, the employer must print the photo non- 
match tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the aulomated system and provide it to 
the employee so that tho employee [nay determine whether he or she will contest the finding. 

3. The Employer agrees to refer individuals to DHS only when the employee chooses lo 
contest a tentative nonconfirmation received from DHS automated verification process or when 
the Employer Issues a tentative nonconfirrnation based upon a photo non-match. The Employer 
will determine whether the e~nployee contests the tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible 



Company ID Number: 245291 

after the Employer receives it. 

4, If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer will 
provide the employee with a referrak letter and instruct the employee to cotilact DHS tlirough its 
toll-free hotline (as found on the referral lelter) within 8 Federal Government work days. 

5. If the employee contests a tentative nnnconfirmation based upon a photo non-matcli, the 
Employer will provide the employee with a referral lelter to DHS. DHS will electronicaly transmit 
the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal Government work days of the referral 
unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary. The Employer agrees to check the E- 
Verify system regularly for case updales. 

6. The Enlployer agrees Hiat if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based 
upon a photo non-match, tho Elnployer v~i'l send a copy of the employee's Form 1-551 or Form 
1-766 to 01-1s for review by: 

Scanning ancl uploading the document, or 
Sanding a photocopy of the document by an express mail account (furnished and paid 
for by DHS). 

7. The Elnploye~~ i~nderstatids that if i t  cannot detetniir~e whether Ihere is a photo 
nlatcl~lnon-lr~ulch, the Eniployer is roqirired lo forward the eniployee's clocumentatior~ lo DI-iS by 
scanning and uploading, or by sending the document as described in the preceding paragraph, 
and resolving the case as specified by the Immigration Services Verifier at DHS wlio vrill 
determine the photo match or non-match. 

ARTICLE IV 

SERVICE PROVISIONS 

SSA and DHS will not charge the Elnployer for verification services petformed under this MOU. 
The Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access the 
E-Verify System, an Employer will need a personal computer with Internet access. 

ARTICLE V 

PARTIES 

A. This MOU is effective upon the signature of at1 parties, and shall continue in effect for as 
long as the SSA and DHS conduct the E-Verify program unless modifled in writing by the mutual 
consent of all parties, or terminated by any party upon 30 days prior wrilten notice to the others. 
Any and all system onhancetnents to the E-Verily program by DHS or SSA, including but 1101 
limited to the E-Verify checking against additional data sources and institilling new verification 
procedures, will be covered under this MOU and will riot cause the need for a supplemental 
MOU that outlines these changes. DHS agrees to train employers on all changes made to E- 
Verify through the use of lnandatory refresher tutorials and updates to the €-Verify User 
Manual. Even without changes to €-Verify, DHS reserves the right to require employers to take 



Cornpsny ID Number. 215291 

mandatory refresher tutorials. An Employer thal is a Federal contractor may terminate this 
h1OU when the Federal contract that requires its participation in €-Verify is terminated or 
completed. In such a circutnstance, the Federal cont~actor must provide written natlce to DHS. 
If an Emptoyer that is a Federal coritractor faits to provide such notice, that Employer will remain 
a participant in the E-Verify program, will remain bound by the terms of this MOU that apply to 
non-federal contractor participants, and will be required lo use the E-Verify procedures to verify 
the ern(>loymenl eligibility of all newly hired ertlployees. 

0. Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU. Dl45 rnay terminate this MOU if deemed 
necessary because of the requirements of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or 
01-15 that there has been a breach of system integrity or security by the Employer, or a failure 
on the part of the Employer to comply wltl~ established procedures or legal requiremetits, The 
Employer understands thal if it is a Federal contractor, termination of Ibis MOW by any party for 
any reason rnay negatively affect ils perforrnance of its contractual responsibilities. 

C. Some or all SSA and DI-IS responsibilities under this MOU may be performed by 
contractor(s), and SSA and Dl-IS may adjust verification respor~sibllities between each other as 
they may determine necessary. By separate agreement with DI-IS, SSA has agreed to perform 
its responsibilities as described in this MOU, 

D. Nothilly in this MOU is intended, or shovlcl fie construed, to create any right or benefit. 
st~bstantive or procedural, enforceable at law by any third parly against the United States, its 
agencies, officers, or employees, or against tile Eniployer, its age~its, officers, or ervployees. 

E. Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising 
out of or related to E-Verify or this MOW, wiiether civil or criminal, and for any l~ability 
wherefrom, including (but not limiled to) any dispule between tlie Employer and any other 
person or entity regarding the applicability of Section 403(d) of IlRlRA to any action taken or 
allegedly taken by the Employer. 

F. The Eniployer understands that the fact of its participation in E-Verify Is not confidential 
information and may he disclosed as authorized or required by law and DHS or SSA policy, 
itlcludi~ly btlt riol limited to, Congressional oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, 
deterrninalions of compliance with Federal contractual requirements, arid responses to inquiries 
under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). 

G. The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between DHS and the 
Employer. 

H. The individuals whose signatures appear bclotv represent that they are auU~arized to 
enter into this MOW on behalf of the Eniployer and DHS respectively. 



Company ID Number: 245291 

To be accepted as a participant In E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section 
of the signature page. If yotr have ally questions, contact E-Verify at 8884644218. 

Employer Du1i11 Co~istructlon Colnflalry tnc. 

Deparlrnerrl of H~~ne laa t l  Sccuriry - Vorificallon Division 

1 : -  I ;  J . .  r : .  ; . . , ..;;, ., 



Company ID Nu!nber. 24529 1 

.----.-- --I-------.. ....... __._-_.- ..... ---- -.. - .  
Information Required for the E-Verify Program 

Information rclati~ig to your Company: 

Are you verllyl~~g for mare tllan I site? If yes, please provltle the nu~nborof sites verified for lrr 
each State; 

ALABAMA 1 slc(s) 



Company 10 Number. 245291 

I ~ i l o r n ~ a t i o ~ ~  I-elating to the Program AdminlsIrator(sf for your Co~nparly on poflcy clues tions 01. 
opcratlorlal problems: , 

Name: Cfiarler; R Millur 
Toleplio~ie IJuniber; (205) 532 - 3066 cxt. 207 Fax Elumber. (205) 592 -4632  
E-mail Address. cmillcr@tlirnnca~istruciio~i.coni 

Name: Judith J Torres 
Telcpho~io Number; (206) 692 - 3066 oxt. 259 Fax Nutnbcr: (205) 510 - 0275 
Emall Address. Jtorrcs@di~nrico~istructio~i.corn 

Nonie: WilIlarii L Hopper Ill 
Tclcpfio~ic tJufnb~r (205) 692 - 3866 cxl. 236 I-ax Plurrber: (205) 510 - 0275 
E-marl P.ddlnor;s; wlia~~por@d~r~i~lconstrt~ctIr)~i.ca~i~ 

Norm: Jnnfcc! I: Gnldsloit~ 
Tclcpl~onc Nurr~bar: (205) 592 - 300G ex[. 257 Fux Nu~litrer; (205) 592 - 4632 
E-mail Address. jgolrlalci11@dutrrico11sL~i1ct101i~c01ii 



- THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THF 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN M E  ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certlficate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the polfcy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the ~o l j cv .  certaln aolicies mav reaujre an endorsement. A slatemenl on this certificate does not confer rlahts to the 

+---I DUNNINV-Of DUBEAA 
ACORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE u 

OATE {MWDDPIWY) 

1 U3012015 

- .  
certificate holder in  lieu of such &tdokment(s<. 

- 

I Birmingham, AL 35202 INSURER E : 1 1 

PRODUCER 

Willis of Alabama, Inc. 
P.O. Box 730416 
Dallas, TX 75373-0416 

COVERAGES CERT IFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER: 
THlS IS TO CERTlFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE lNSURED NAMEDABOVE FOR M E  POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THlS 

kz!'EACT Wil l is Certif icate Center 
~ ~ ~ ~ D D  Ex,I; (877) 945-7378 1 [ , 8 ,  NO): (888) 467-2378 
ZbM&5S: cert i f icate~@wi~tis.corn 

NAIC # 

25674 
25623 

1. INSURER(5) AFFORDING COVERAGE 

I CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLlCIES DESCRIBED HERElN IS SUBJECTTOALLTHETERMS. I 

INSURED 

Dunn Construction Company, Inc. 
3905 Airport Highway 
P.O. Box1 1967 

EXCLUSlONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

I~JURER A ,Travelers Property Casualty Company of America 

INSURER8 :Phoenix insurance Company 
INSURER c : 
JNSURER 0 : 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LlhllT APPLIES PER I b  WL,CV pg gig pJ LO!Z 

10,000 

PERSONAL 6 ADVINJURY 2,000,000 

GENERAL AGGREGAT E 4,000,000 

PRODUCTS - COMPIDP AGG 4,000,000 

I AUTOMOBILE LIABIWTT 

ALL O't.hlED 

H!RED AWOS 
NONSlhNED 
AUTOS 

. .  . 

B3D;LY INJURY (Per accident) S 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Par acader;ll s 

5 
I I 

UMBRELLA Ll4B EACHKCURRENCE S 

EXCESS LlAB CUIMS-MADE AGGREGATE S 

C+%CRlPTION OF OPERAflONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD I O * ,  dddlllonal Remarks Schedule, m y  k attached 11 mom IpYce IS R~uIR~) 

B 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATlON 
I I 

I SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLlClES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
M E  EXPlRATlON DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN I 

(Mandatory In NH) E L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE S 1,000.000! 
If 05 d e s d e  unde' 

EL. DISEASE -POLICY LIMIT S ~,ooo,o~o 

1 DED 1 1 RETENTIONS 
WORKERS COMPENSATION 
AND EMPLOYERS' uAWuw Y I N 
ANY PUOPRIETO~~P~RTNEREXE~UTI~E o 
OFFtCEit+MEMBER EXCLUDED1 

I ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. I 

N, A 

L  for Information Only 

VTC2NUB90459956-PHX-15 

J 
AVMOREED REPRESENTATNE 

*c: MCM, 
O 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Al l  rights resewed. 

ACORD 25 (2014101) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

1213112015 1213112016 

n. XTRTWE I 1 %  
E L, WCH A C C I D E ~  -- 

5 

s 1,000,000' 


	2016-May-9 Agenda
	2.  Minutes
	3.  Conditional use
	4.  Library exterior consultant
	5.  Joint training facility

